This document is made available electronically by the Minnesota Legislative Reference Library as part of an ongoing digital archiving project. http://www.leg.state.mn.us/lrl/lrl.asp

ACTIONS OF THE

1963

MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

Research Department

Legislative Research Committee

KFM **July**, 1963 5415 .M56 1963

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESUTA P L50.4 COPY 2 1963

INTRODUCTION

"Actions of the 1963 Minnesota Legislature" is designed to provide members of the Legislature and other interested persons with a summary of major legislation passed during the 1963 session. This publication, by providing a topical reference to enactments and a detailed and historical analysis of major state appropriations, should serve as a sourcebook on the 1963 session. Although the report was compiled without benefit of the session laws or the bound permanent journals, the material contained herein is believed to be accurate.

The report includes a summary of changes in existing laws and new laws enacted by the 1963 session. Amendments to existing laws are not always indicated. A number of enactments have been excluded because of their minor effect both as to substantive change and limited or local application. The summaries are necessarily brief and in many cases indicate only the general purpose of the law or the major changes effected. Summaries are identified by chapter number and legislative file number. Each enactment is grouped according to its main topic; in some instances summaries are grouped under more than one heading. The headings are identical to those used in previous editions of "Actions".

Additional information on all of the laws may be obtained by referring to the newspaper edition of the session laws which should be available soon.

A large portion of this report is devoted to detailed analysis and historical review of major state appropriations and the state building program.

Members of the legislature are urged to submit suggestions to the Legislative Research Committee for improving the usefulness of this summary.

Research Department Legislative Research Committee 109 State Capitol St. Paul 1, Minnesota

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

LEGISLATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

The Sixty-Third Session of the Minnesota Legislature convened on January 8, 1963, and adjourned sine die on May 23, 1963. The actual date of adjournment was the same as the journal record of adjournment. During this period 2,010 bills were introduced in the House of Representatives and 1,893 bills were introduced in the Senate. Of the total 3,903 bills introduced in the two chambers (many of which were companion bills), 888 were enacted into law and seven resolutions were adopted. Four bills were vetoed and two were pocket vetoed by the Governor.

A summary of the above is included in this publication.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

		Page	
Introduction			
Legislative Highlights			
Agriculture			
Business and Labor			
Banking		3	
General Business		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · 3 - 6	
Insurance		667	
Labor		7	
Liquor Control		8	
Conservation			
Game and Fish			
General Conservation			
Minerals and Timber			
Parks and Forests			
Soil and Water			
Counties and Towns			
General			
Hennepin County			
Ramsey County			
St. Louis County			
Crime and Correction			
Education			
Elementary, Secondary and Ge	neral Education .		
Higher Education			
General Legislation			
Health and Welfare			

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont.)

Page

Highways					
General					
Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulations	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	3 5≈30			
Judiciary		37-39			
Municipalities	~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~	40-41			
Municipalities - Cities of the First Class					
General		42-43			
Duluth		43-44			
Minneapolis					
St. Paul					
Retirement Systems					
State Government					
Constitutional Amendments	0 0 0 0 0 6	52			
Examining and Licensing Boards	0 • 0 0 0 0 0	52			
Major Appropriations	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	53-54			
State Departments	0 0 0 0 0 0 0	54-57			
State Employees	0 0 0 0 0 0	57			
Miscellaneous		58-60			
Taxation					
General		61-63			
Income Tax					
Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes					
Property Tax		65-67			
Vetoes					
Interim Commissions		69			

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont.)

Aro:	propriations	Page
	Table I - Summary of 1963 Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year	70
	Table II - Estimated "Open" or "Standing" Appropriations from General Revenue Fund and Income Tax School Fund	71
	Table III - 1963 Direct Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year	72-73
	Table IV - Comparison of Five Major Appropriation Bills, 1963 Legislative Session	74
	Table V - Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1955 through 1963 - Four Major Bills	75
	Table VI - Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1955 through 1963 - Education	76
	Table VII - Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1955 through 1963 - Semi-State	77
	Table VIII - Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1955 through 1963 - State Departments	78
	Table IX - Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1955 through 1963 - Welfare and Corrections	79
	Table X - Appropriations for Education (Other than University and State Colleges) 1940 through 1965	80
	Table XI - Appropriations for the University of Minnesota for Fiscal Years 1933 through 1965	81
	Table XII - Appropriations for Minnesota State Colleges, 1940 through 1965.	82
	Table XIII - Appropriations for State Institutions, 1940 through 1965	83
	Table XIV - Appropriations for Welfare and Corrections Activities, 1940-65	84
	Table XV - Total Appropriation Bills	85
	Table XVI - State Bonds Authorized by the 1963 Legislature	86
	Table XVII - Summary Comparison of Senate, House and Conference Building Bills, 1963 - 1965	87-88

•

ACTIONS OF THE 1963 MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

AGRICULTURE

- Chap. 6 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the sale of female cattle set 30 not vaccinated for brucellosis.
- Chap. 90 Establishes a uniform basis for purchase price quotations and provides alternatives to the Babcock Method for the testing of milk and cream.
- Chap. 91 Requires dairy plant owners to keep in proper books true and full records of all milk, cream, butterfat and other dairy products handled by them each day in such form as prescribed by the commissioner.
- Chap. 96 Provides for the inspection of potatoes shipped from this state in lots of 3,000 pounds or more and further provides that all fees shall be assessed against the inspection certificate applicant and shall be collected by the Commissioner of Agriculture.
- Chap. 101 Requires the owner, operator or lessee of a dairy plant to include in his application for a license to the commissioner an audited financial statement verified by the auditor and the plant manager.
- Chap. 102 Provides that any person holding a milk and cream testing license who does not renew his license within one year of its expiration date (except when engaged in military service) shall be required to prove his competency before a license will be issued. The commissioner may require any other person seeking renewal of his license to prove his competency in the same manner.
- Chap. 114 Modifies the Plant Pest Act: allows the Commissioner of Agriculture SF 400 or his employees to enter onto any land to inspect for plant pests. Further provides that the commissioner may charge the landowner for any work done toward the removal of pests and outlines procedures by which these charges may be collected from the owner.
- Chap. 123 Amends certain license laws administered by the Department of Agriculture HF 211 dealing with the licensing of fur farmers, food handlers, dairy plants and frozen food processing plants and provides the terms of such licenses, their fees, and penalties for late renewal application.
- Chap. 141 Amends the law relating to the organization of the State Agricultural HF 531 Society. Makes additional changes pertaining to the annual meeting of the society.
- Chap. 142 Amends the law relating to county tax levies to assist county agricultural societies. Increases the authorized tax levy limit from one-half to one mill for all applicable counties except those containing a city of the first class. Establishes the mill levy limit at one-half mill for counties containing a city of the first class.
- Chap. 174 Increases the maximum length limit of boats and other watercraft used in HF 456 harvesting wild rice to 18 feet.

AGRICULTURE (cont.)

- Chap. 187 Authorizes the use of a "Minnesota Approved" label on all meat and SF 241 meat products that meet specifically listed requirements.
- Chap. 286 Authorizes the State Department of Agriculture to establish the rules HF 81 and regulations that must be followed relative to the cleaning of eggs that are to be marketed.
- Chap. 408 Amends various sections of the law relating to county agricultural societies to provide that real and personal property owned by the society may be either rented or leased. Prescribes the manner in which the money received from such rentals shall be used. Also makes various other changes in the law.
- Chap. 486 Provides the Commissioner of Agriculture with the authority to promote SF 204 the expansion, improvement, and development of markets for Minnesota agriculture products.
- Chap. 502 Amends the law relating to the sale of cattle not tested for brucellosis SF 1350 by including sprayed heifers and calves of beef type and breed under eight months of age within the authorized sale category.
- Chap. 552 Requires applicants for licenses in livestock buying to file a surety bond with the Railroad and Warehouse Commissioner named as trustee. Further provides that the value of the bond will depend upon the volume of business which the applicant enjoyed during the previous year and establishes \$5,000 as the minimum bond.
- Chap. 592 Amends the section of the Minnesota Screenings Act relating to conditions specified and situations whereby certain provisions of the act do not apply, by making certain changes in the regulations governing the sale of agricultural seeds at farm auctions.
- Chap. 598 Amends the law relating to the licensing and regulation of meat process— SF 1192 ing establishments by providing for certain changes in license require ments and by establishing a more comprehensive classification of the various types of meat processing establishments.
- Chap. 705 Requires that every warehouseman operating a public terminal warehouse within the switching limits of St. Paul, Minneapolis and Duluth or any terminal point as described in section 223.01, subd. 3 shall publish annually in July, a schedule of storage rates for the ensuing year; further provides that the cost of receiving, handling and delivering grain shall not exceed \$.03 per bushel.
- Chap. 808 Appropriates to the Commissioner of Agriculture a total of \$60,000 to be used to defray the costs and the expenses involved in enforcing the butterfat overrun laws for the fiscal years 1964 and 1965.
- Chap. 832 Repeals the \$,10 tax on uncolored eleomargarine and places a \$.10 HF 1264 tax on colored eleomargarine.

BUSINESS AND LABOR

Banking --

- Chap. 140 Authorizes certain banks to invest funds in clerical service corpora-HF 415 tions that would provide clerical and other services to these banks.
- Chap. 153 Makes certain amendments to various sections of the laws relating to HF 667 banking in the state.
- Chap. 204 Revises the fee schedule for bank examination by the Commissioner of HF 1079 Banks. Fee schedule changed for banks, trust companies, savings, building and loan associations, and credit unions.
- Chap. 301 Provides that a bank may present a negotiable instrument drawn upon another bank either through a clearing house or at a place where the other bank has requested such bank to make presentment for payment.
- Chap. 396 Requires credit unions to submit annual reports to the Commissioner of HF 927 Banks on or before January 25 of each year.
- Chap. 484 Authorizes the conversion of any state chartered savings and loan SF 1181 association into a federal savings and loan association.
- Chap. 511 Amends sections of the law relating to depositories of public funds specifically including county sanitorium commissions within the category of governmental units depositing public funds.
- Chap. 534 Amends the law relating to real estate loans by savings, building and loan associations by modifying a requirement pertaining to loan bonds or notes.
- Chap. 536 Includes savings, building and loan associations under various sections of the law relating to the giving of false statements to obtain credit from various type banks and trust companies.
- Chap. 577 Changes certain provisions in the law relating to installment loans SF 888 made by banks when such loans do not exceed \$5,000.
- Chap. 606 Amends various sections of the law regulating savings, building and SF 1437 loan associations to provide for certain changes pertaining to loans, investments, reserve requirements and certain other subjects.

General Business --

- Chap. 59 Alters the procedure by which factors liens may be extended for one year after the expiration of the initial three year period has passed without satisfaction of the debt.
- Chap. 60 Repeals certain sections of the law relating to the use of railroad SF 200 right of way for public warehouses, elevators and coal sheds.

- Chap. 73 Provides for the appointment of an assistant commissioner of securities SF 239 and makes certain changes in the Securities Law.
- Chap. 82 Provides alternative places for the investment of funds established by the Board of Supervisors of any town, village or borough, or board of trustees or the directors of any religious incorporation for the maintenance of a cemetery and requires those members of any board who handle such funds to post bond.
- Chap. 94 Permits any fraternal beneficiary association to invest its funds in any investments, including real estate holdings to the extent that the laws of this state allow the investment of the assets of life insurance companies; and subject to the same limitations.
- Chap. 117 Limits the sale or offering for sale of any insurance in connection SF 536 with a small loan.
- Chap. 139 Authorizes the formation of attorneys' professional corporations and HF 183 establishes principles for their operations.
- Chap. 146 Amends the law relating to professional corporations in the state to provide that individual physicians may be classified as a corporation.
- Chap. 154 Amends the law pertaining to the licensing of hotels, resorts and HF 762 restaurants to establish more comprehensive licensing regulations. Act becomes effective January 1, 1964.
- Chap. 172 Amends the law relating to cooperative associations to provide for HF 371 changes in the manner of electing the directors of such associations.
- Chap. 215 Amends section of the law pertaining to hairdressing and beauty
 SF 219 culture establishments to provide for more specific health and sanitary
 regulations as well as certain other regulations.
- Chap. 283 Provides for the incorporation and regulation of voluntary non profit dental service plan corporations. Law incorporated into the existing statute pertaining to voluntary nonprofit medical service plans.
- Chap. 299 Amends the law relating to the issuance of corporation stock certif-SF 1199 icates to provide for the use of facsimile signatures and corporate seals according to additional prescribed regulations.
- Chap. 321 Increases surety bond requirements to \$2,000 for each real estate

 HF 325 salesman employed by a broker and raises the maximum bond to \$20,000 with the State of Minnesota as the obligee. Raises the license fee to \$10 for real estate salesmen. Further provides for the creation of an advisory commission within the Department of Securities.
- Chap. 322 Provides the requirements for the giving of securities and money to HF 358 minors and authorizes credit unions to act as custodians of such securities and money.

- Chap. 384 Makes certain changes in the law regulating the powers of credit

 HF 280 unions and alters the particular duties of the directors when dealing with applications for membership.
- Chap. 457 "Apartment Ownership Act." Establishes comprehensive rules, regulations, and procedures pertaining to the major aspects of apartment ownership. Defines aspects relating or pertinent to apartment operations and clearly defines the obligations and responsibilities of apartment owners. Further provides for separate assessment and taxation for owners of individual apartments within a complex.
- Chap. 461 Amends the law relating to the enbalming profession by removing SF 995 apprentice and assistant funeral directors from under certain provisions and regulations governing personnel engaged in the profession.
- Chap. 483 Provides for license fees for persons in the business of selling and distributing mixed fertilizers and fertilizers. Further establishes an inspection fee for such commodities.
- Chap. 490 Amends the law relating to the sale of economic poisons by prohibiting the sale of an economic poison to the ultimate consumer either in bulk form or from an open container. Economic poisons sold to the ultimate consumer must be in an unopened original container and labeled according to the provisions of existing law. Act becomes effective on Jan. 1, 1964.
- Chap. 494 Amends various sections of the law relating to the registration, sale, specifically said regulation of economic poisons by including economic poison devices under the same regulations and requirements as economic poisons.
- Chap. 538 Makes certain changes in the law relating to certain type securities HF 1599 not subject to registration under state law.
- Chap. 562 Relates to unemployment compensation. Expands the group to be HF 1275 classified as employers.
- Chap. 596 Makes various changes in the law relating to the regulations governing industrial loan and thrift companies. Makes special changes relating to the powers of such companies in relation to insurance policies associated with loans.
- Chap. 628 Establishes various regulations and restrictions governing contracts

 HF 707 relating to the instruction and training in social skills such as
 dancing. Law becomes effective July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 674 Makes minor changes in the law regarding securities and the require-SF 1761 ment that brokers keep their own securities separated from those of their customers.
- Chap. 710 Makes certain changes in the laws governing religious and other non-HF 453 profit corporations.

- Chap. 712 Provides for certain instances when the cigarettes within a vending HF 954 machine and the machine itself may be treated as contraband, and sealed, in lieu of seizure by the Commissioner of Taxation or his agents.
- Chap. 725 Provides changes in the compensation allowed a member of a cemetery association who is acting as a corporate trustee of a permanent care and improvement fund when such fund is less than \$20,000.
- Chap. 759 Amends various sections of the law relating to the regulation and sale of cigarettes in order to better prevent unfair competition and trade practices and the sale of cigarettes below cost.
- Chap. 797 Establishes a comprehensive law to be incorporated into a separate SF 708 chapter of the Minnesota Statutes that provides for the control and regulation of the sale of subdivided lands in the state.
- Chap. 872 Grants the power of eminant domain to certain corporations either SF 1588 presently engaging in or preparing to engage in the mining and beneficiating of semi-taconite.
- Res. 1 Memorializes the Interstate Commerce Commission to grant a hearing
 HF 184 on the suspension of certain Chicago and Northwestern passenger train
 service that affects the metropolitan area and southern Minnesota.
- Res. 7 Memorializes the Congress of the United States to end the causes of the 40 unemployment in the iron ore industry in Minnesota by restricting importation of foreign ores, preventing integrated steel companies from selling their excess incremental iron ore mined in foreign countries, ending financial assistance for the development of iron mining in foregin countries, and determining the effect of transportation rates on the sale of Minnesota ore.

Insurance --

- Chap. 46 Amends requirements for fraternal beneficiary associations becoming mutual life insurance companies by omitting minimum membership stipulations.
- Chap. 80 Relates to the amendment of the certificates of incorporation of HF 742 stock and mutual life insurance companies.
- Chap. 87 Provides for the assessment and collection of taxes and payment of HF 228 refunds by the Commissioner of Insurance to companies subject to insurance gross premiums.
- Chap. 88 Changes date for payment of insurance gross premium tax from April HF 229 30 to March 1 and provides a penalty for failure to comply to this schedule.

- Chap. 89 Provides that other insurance may be prohibited or the amount of insurance limited by so providing in the policy or in an endorsement, rider or form attached to the Minnesota Standard Fire Insurance policy.
- Chap. 159 Amends the law relating to the investment of funds for stock purchase SF 240 by insurance companies by making certain changes relating to the classification of common stocks.
- Chap. 200 Amends certain sections of the law relating to life insurance policies. Makes specific changes relating to the valuation of reserve liabilities, nonforfeiture benefits, and adjustments on insurance premiums.
- Chap. 229 Provides for the regulation, control and prosecution by the Insurance HF 248 Commissioner against all insurance companies not authorized to transact business within the state. Further provides for action that may be taken against false advertising and misrepresentations of such non authorized insurance companies.
- Chap. 267 Amends one section of the fee schedule for insurance documents filed With the Commissioner of Insurance by charging 25 cents for each page filed.
- Chap. 272 Revises various sections of certain laws relating to paid-up capital HF 747 stock and other financial assets to provide for higher minimum requirements in certain categories.
- Chap. 385 Relates to the regulation and supervision of the placement of surplus HF 286 line insurance.
- Chap. 548 Establishes a comprehensive law authorizing life insurance companies HF 893 to issue contracts on a variable basis. Prescribes the various terms and conditions relating to the issuance of such contracts.
- Chap. 732 Requires the creation and maintenance of unearned premium reserves SF 887 by title insurance companies.

Labor --

- Chap. 136 Extends date of Class C. installer provisions for electricians until HF 743 July 1, 1965.
- Chap. 493 Amends certain sections of the law relating to workmen's compensation by providing that voluntary uncompensated workers contracted by and performing services under the Commissioner of Corrections shall receive workmen's compensation benefits according to the prescribed regulations.
- Chap. 708 Creates exceptions to the minimum wage law with regard to certain HF 17 learners and apprentices in the apparel and garment industries.

Liquor Control --

- Chap. 285 Amends the law relating to commodities which may be sold in the liquor stores of certain communities by providing that the governing body of any municipality issuing exclusive on sale or combination on sale and off sale intoxicating liquor licenses may permit the licensees to sell the listed commodities.
- Chap. 608 Provides for the issuance of on sale liquor licenses to congressional-SF 1553 ly chartered veterans' organizations in the municipalities of certain counties according to prescribed procedures and regulations.

CONSERVATION

Game and Fish --

- Chap. 38 Provides that a fishhouse or shelter may be situated and used on the ice after February 28 between the hours of 7:00 A.M. and 7:00 P.M. only, if the season for taking any species of fish is open in that area.
- Chap. 47 Provides that any person who erects any sign prohibiting trepass SF 174 on any lands in or over which he has no right, title, interest, or license shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.
- Chap. 69 Provides that northern pike or pickerel may no longer be taken by commercial fishermen on Lake Superior and allows the use of pound or trap nets by these fishermen in taking certain species of fish under rules and regulations established by the Commissioner of Conservation.
- Chap. 70 Provides additional license fees for the taking of lake trout and SF lll white fish by commercial fishermen in Lake Superior.
- Chap. 71 Adds certain lakes to those authorized by the Commissioner of SF 191 Conservation to be migratory waterfowl feeding and resting areas.
- Chap. 175 Amends the law relating to the maintenance and operation of private fish hatcheries to provide for the taking of fish from the same without a fishing license. License exemptions are to be granted only according to prescribed regulations.
- Chap. 176 Amends the law relating to the hunting of certain game birds to provide that ruffed grouse and partridges shall not be hunted in any areas of the state where there is also a concurrent open season on big game.
- Chap. 190 Authorizes the Commissioner of the Department of Conservation to prescribe the seasons, limits, and other regulations concerning the taking and possession of salmon from inland lakes or international waters.
- Chap. 191 Amends law relating to fish toxicants to provide that such toxicants SF 897 may be applied to waters where the purpose is reclamation.
- Chap. 238

 Authorizes the establishment of private game shooting preserves and prescribes the regulations and requirements whereby these preserves shall be licensed and maintained. The Commissioner of Conservation shall determine whether such preserves are in the best public interests and meet the other safeguarding requirements prescribed prior to the issuance of a license.
- Chap. 320 Establishes bounties for certain species of wild animals through HF 154 June 30, 1965.

- Chap. 338 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to issue special permits SF 894 to individual lake improvement associations and riparian owners to apply fish toxicants to state waters for the purpose of reclamation.
- Chap. 394 Authorizes the taking of sucker eggs from public waters for private HF 814 hatchery purposes and establishes fees for such privleges.
- Chap. 444 Regulates the time for the taking of trout and makes it unlawful to take any trout except lake trout between 11:00 P.M. (was 10:00 P.M.) central standard time and one hour before sunrise.
- Chap. 466 Permits the Commissioner of Conservation according to prescribed conditions to issue free fishing licenses to wards of the Commissioner of Public Welfare who are institutionalized in state public welfare institutions.
- Chap. 476 Raises the license fees for residents to \$5 for the taking of deer SF 114 with firearms, \$5 for the taking of deer with bow and arrow, \$2 for any fish or dark house used during the winter fishing season and \$3 for fish or dark houses offered for rent.
- Chap. 482 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to contract with qualified persons for the taking and disposing of rough fish and other species at a rate of compensation that the Commissioner may deem reasonable.
- Chap. 561 Authorizes the sale of crappies and sturgeon under certain HF 89 circumstances.
- Chap. 688 Amends the law relating to commercial fishing in Lake Superior by SF 895 authorizing the use of boats over 35 feet in length. Establishes license fees for such boats.
- Chap. 690 Provides that fishing seines may be used only according to the SF 1257 regulations prescribed by the Commissioner of Conservation. Establishes license fees for seines according to the length of the seine.
- Chap. 691 Authorizes the use of fishing trawls on Lake of the Woods according SF 1386 to certain prescribed regulations and specifications. License fees established at \$500 per trawl.
- Chap. 707 Prescribes the duties and responsibilities of certain county SF 1787 auditors when dealing with game and fish licensing when such auditors retain fees paid for such license purposes.
- Chap. 820 Makes certain changes in the law governing the disposition of HF 1486 moneys taken in payment for hunting, trapping and fishing licenses.

General --

- Chap. 11 Amends the law relating to the submitting of claims for negligence HF 173 against park districts and park boards by making certain changes in filing procedures.
- Chap. 25 Prohibits the removal or defacing of any State Conservation Depart-SF 116 ment sign except by authority of the Commissioner.
- Chap. 185 Amends law relating to the acceptance of grants of money and property from the federal government to provide that such grants may be received for general conservation purposes.
- Chap. 669 Appropriates the sum of \$15,000 to the Commissioner of Conservation from any moneys in the game and fish fund; to be expended for an airplane to be used in law enforcement in the game and fish division and for game census work.
- Chap. 733 Authorizes the publication of the "Conservation Volunteer" by the SF 1160 Department of Conservation five times during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963.
- Chap. 790 "Omnibus Natural Resources and Recreation Act." Provides for the acquisition of lands to be used as recreation areas and for the development of the natural resources of the state; authorizes the expenditure of some 7 million dollars during the calendar years 1964-65 and provides for an increase in the state cigarette tax to furnish the necessary funds for this project.

The Bill further calls for the addition of land to 17 existing state parks and for the purchase of lands for 14 new state parks. Makes available immediately from the General Fund the sum of \$400,000 to enable the purchase of wetlands and wildlife lands on which the state holds an option; further provides for the sum of \$500,000 to be made available from the General Fund to be used in distressed areas to provide work for needy and unemployed persons on conservation projects.

A 14 member legislative commission is created to advise and consult with the Commissioner of Conservation on the administration of the program.

Minerals and Timber --

Chap. 21 Grants to the executive council power to extend certain timber permits upon recommendation of the Commissioner of Conservation and provides time limit and charges for such extension.

- Chap. 44 Provides that the Commissioner of Conservation may allow the cutting of any timber of questionable market value within a sale area and that the optional timber will not be considered part of the sale contract until the permit holder has notified the Commissioner of his intent to cut such timber.
- Chap. 64 Excludes hardwood, pulpwood, and boughs cut for decorative purposes from timber products to be scaled by the surveyor general.
- Chap. 171 Amends the law relating to the appraisal and sale of state lands with timber resources to provide that only merchantable timber rather than all timber shall be separately appraised for sale purposes. Also provides that the value of timber production shall be included in the original appraisal.
- Chap. 202 Amends the law relating to the sale and appraisal of state public lands to require that the value of timber production on the land shall be included in the minimum sale price. Permits the sale of certain school lands previously not permitted to be sold because of timber resources on the land.
- Chap. 685 Relates to lands or minerals and mineral rights becoming the HF 1696 property of the state through the tax laws.

Parks and Forests --

- Chap. 85
 SF 477
 Appropriates \$34,350 to the Forest Pest Control Account for forest pest control to be available for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963. Provides that any balance remaining shall be available until June 30, 1965.
- Chap. 265 Changes the name of the Brule River State Park to the Judge C. R. SF 1293 Magney State Park.
- Chap. 332 Establishes the boundaries of state forests. HF 413
- Chap. 381 Amends the law relating to the sale of state forest lands to provide for the sale and removal from state forest lands such lands as are considered to have greater value for industrial or commercial purposes, including forestry related enterprises. Removal of such lands from the state forests and the subsequent sale thereof contingent upon certain listed conditions.
- Chap. 386 Gives the Commissioner of Conservation the power to mark cance routes, establish camp sites and enter into agreement with agencies and private owners for use of lands abutting the Little Fork, Big Fork, Minnesota and St. Croix Rivers.

- Chap. 415 Provides that any person who removes any timber from tax forfeited HF 1094 land before said timber is scaled and fully paid for shall be guilty of a misdemeanor.
- Chap. 588 Amends the law relating to employment security by providing that HF 1104 employment in state parks shall be classified as employment by the state.
- Chap. 589 Amends the law relating to the apportionment of funds for roads included within the county state-aid highway system by providing for the allocation of funds for certain roads within the system for purposes of providing public access routes to state parks. Law applies to both presently existing as well as planned roads and access routes whether they are already within state parks or provide access to state parks.
- Chap. 657 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to establish camp-SF 347 grounds in state forests and charge appropriate fees for the use of such facilities.
- Chap. 840 Appropriates certain funds to the Commissioner of Conservation for HF 1971 construction and improvement projects in state parks and to be called the state park development account. Further provides for the distribution of the taxes realized from the sale of gasoline used for motor boat purposes and requires that permits be purchased by motorists before entry into state recreation areas. Further provides that the moneys allotted shall not cancel and sets July 1, 1963 as the effective date of the act.

Soil and Water --

- Chap. 41 Provides for the method of financing watershed district improvements by the counties.
- Chap. 42 Provides the procedure to be followed by the Board of Managers
 HF 233 in acquiring lands needed for cooperative projects of the watershed district and the United States Government.
- Chap. 193 Amends the law pertaining to cost assessments for ditch system

 SF 1178 repair to provide for an increase in the maximum number of installment payments allowed for the payment of such assessments.
- Chap. 245 Amends the law relating to the dumping of trash and garbage on or HF 333 near public waters by listing specific types of refuse.
- Chap. 313 Provides for the regulation of marine toilets and the dispelling SF 1024 of wastes from watercraft after January 1, 1965.
- Chap. 330 Relates to the election of soil conservation district supervisors HF 1530 and requires that nominating petitions for that office be filed with the secretary of the soil conservation district 15 days (was 10 days) before the time of holding the town meeting.

- Chap. 647 Provides that the federal government and certain listed state

 HF 1836 government activities need not pay royalties for certain materials removed from public waters.
- Chap. 803 Amends the law relating to pending proceedings for the establishment of watershed districts by providing that when such pending proceedings are requested to be transferred to the state water resources board that the transfer shall not be construed as depriving the court of jurisdiction over any judicial question which at the time of the petition is undetermined.
- Chap. 815 Makes minor change in a section of the drainage law defining HF 1154 public waters.
- Chap. 816 Amends the law relating to the use of drainage systems as outlets HF 1155 by providing that the law shall be applicable to the construction of any ditch or drain that outlets water into an existing county or judicial ditch regardless of the actual physical connection.
- Chap. 817 Authorizes, according to the prescribed conditions and regulations, the construction and installation of dams or other control works within drainage systems for purposes of impounding and diverting waters for more effective and beneficial uses.
- Chap. 834 Provides for certain changes in the law relating to the control HF 1789 and operation of watershed districts.
- Chap. 874 "Water Pollution Bill." Provides for the prevention, control, specific states and abatement of water pollution in the waters of the state by the construction and operation of municipal sewage disposal systems. Creates and outlines the duties and powers of a Water Pollution Control Commission and authorizes that body to establish a standard of purity for state waters after a study of the present degree of purity has been completed.

Further authorizes the municipalities of the state to levy taxes to offset any expenses incurred in the improving of their sewage disposal systems and grants the commission the authority to order any municipality or private concern to revamp its sewage disposal system.

Further provides that the commission may order two or more municipalities to coordinate their efforts to curtail pollution and may formulate a contract between such municipalities. Provides that the commission may enforce its orders through an action brought in the name of the state by the Attorney General.

COUNTIES AND TOWNS

General --

- Chap. 33 Provides that profits from municipal liquor store sales may be used for the construction, operation, repair and maintenance of public buildings.
- Chap. 137 Allows cities of the fourth class to let contracts or provide for the furnishing of materials without advertisement for proposals if the sum to be expended does not exceed \$1,000.00 (was \$500.00).
- Chap. 152 Amends the law relating to town boards and the powers thereof to provide for town memberships in certain associations. Establishes \$100 as the maximum authorized annual expenditure for town participation in such associations.
- Chap. 163 Provides for the regulation and control of motor vehicle parking SF 640 on parking facilities owned or operated by a county. Act does not apply to counties containing a city of the first class.
- Chap. 198 Increases the maximum amount that counties may allocate for county HF 311 extension activities from \$25,000 to \$35,000 a year.
- Chap. 234 Provides that each village and town within a metropolitan area HF 337 as defined by law shall constitute a separate election district.
- Chap. 240 Amends the law relating to the fee schedule for sheriffs to SF 638 provide that such schedule shall not apply to counties having a total population of over 275,000 persons.
- Chap. 282 Amends the law relating to cigarette and liquor tax distributions SF 595 to municipalities and other county political subdivisions by providing for a special census that may be taken in the year 1965 and every ten years thereafter for purposes of redistributing taxes in accordance with census findings.
- Chap. 308 Permits county commissioner to serve on the board of county hospitals except when any hospital board is operating a county hospital as defined in Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 376.009 located in a city of the first class.
- Chap. 310 Relates to poor relief and authorizes cities of the third and fourth class and villages, boroughs or towns operating under the town system of poor relief to contract with counties for certain services.
- Chap. 312 Provides that the county board of any county which decreased in population may restore and fix the salary of any officer whose salary would be reduced due to such decrease in population as noted in the 1960 Federal Census.

- Chap. 343 Allows tax levies by certain counties not to exceed 1/4 mill for SF 1100 the purpose of the development of natural resources throughout the Red River Valley after approval of the terms of this act by the board of county commissioners in the various counties.
- Chap. 416 Provides for the appointment of additional election judges during HF 214 elections by the council of any municipality.
- Chap. 411 Validates and legalizes the vacation of roads and platted streets, SF 1236 drives or public ways by town boards.
- Chap. 452 Authorizes contiguous counties to cooperate in establishing and

 HF 1283 maintaining regional jails and work farms for purposes of providing

 jail facilities with adequate work programs and rehabilitation

 services.
- Chap. 462 Amends the law relating to cigarette taxes by providing that the SF 1008 Commissioner of Taxation may designate county treasurers to set cigarette tax meters on cigarette distributors according to prescribed settings and regulations.
- Chap. 506 Authorizes the appointment according to prescribed conditions of a public defender to represent and defend minors in the juvenile court of counties having over 300,000 population.
- Chap. 518 Amends the law relating to tax forfeited land sales by providing that members of the county board shall be compensated at the rate of \$10.00 per day for expenses incurred in performing official duties.
- Chap. 529 Makes certain changes in the law relating to membership in state HF 1384 and national associations by local units of government.
- Chap. 535 Provides that for the election of town officers in all towns other than those within 30 miles of a city of the first class, polls shall open no later than 10:00 A.M. and shall close no earlier than 5:00 P.M. Provides for certain other time options in accordance with town board resolutions.
- Chap. 553 Increases the fees to \$.50 to be charged by county auditors for the HF 773 search for any tax liens and tax sales on lands.
- Chap. 563 Makes certain changes in the law relating to surety bonds required to be furnished by county officers and employees in counties now or hereafter having a population of more than 250,000.
- Chap. 624 Amends the law relating to the appointment of election judges by county boards and town councils by establishing additional regulations governing the appointment of election judges from among the qualified voters of the various election precincts.

- Chap. 650 Amends the law relating to coroners fees by establishing minimum HF 1896 and maximum fee provisions for certain services performed by coroners. Actual fees are to be established by the county board. Sets mileage rate of reimbursement at $7\frac{1}{2}$ cents per mile.
- Chap. 652 Provides for the acquisition, use and leasing of voting machines HF 1944 by the governing body of each county in the state.
- Chap. 692 Makes various changes in the law relating to county planning and zoning activities. Provides for not less than five nor more than ll members of a county planning advisory commission.
- Chap. 693 Amends the law relating to the qualifications of the office of county surveyor by making certain changes pertaining to the starting dates of terms in office.
- Chap. 717 Requires the power and light commission in each municipality to publish in the official newspaper of the city within 45 days after each meeting all proceedings of the commission, and to publish a detailed statement of all revenue received every three months.
- Chap. 734 Provides for the allocations of county state aid highway funds to SF 1260 townships and provides that each county board so allocating such funds may devise a formula so as to effect an equitable distribution of these funds to the various towns.
- Chap. 756 Authorizes the State Board of Health to provide funds to counties HF 730 or combination of counties for purposes of assisting them in the establishment and operation of local tuberculosis control programs. Appropriates from the state treasury a total of \$60,000 to be used to assist the program in the fiscal years 1964 and 1965.
- Chap. 767 Amends the law relating to election ballots and ballot labels

 HF 1914 for the use of voting machines by providing that the county
 auditor may use a one inch or greater space between partisan and
 non-partisan ballots, but that canary yellow shall always be the
 background color when non-partisan ballots are used.
- Chap. 798 Provides that every municipality is subject to liability for its SF 758 torts, and those of its officers, employees, and agents acting within the scope of their employement or duties, whether arising from a governmental or propriatry function. Further provides that school districts retain their immunity. An interim commission has been created to investigate and study the doctrine of governmental immunity, liability, and suits against the state and its political subdivisions.
- Chap. 799 Makes certain changes in various sections of the laws relating SF 1095 to the appointment and duties of local town and village assessors.

- Chap. 807 Amends the law relating to city and village incorporation,

 detachment, and annexation by making certain changes relating

 to the annexation of incorporated and unincorporated lands to

 municipalities and the detachment of property from a municipality.

 Changes also made in sections of laws relating to village incorporation and the commission concerned with municipal annexation

 and village incorporations. Further provides that written

 objections to the annexation of land by another municipality

 abutting the land to be annexed must be filed with the Commission

 within 30 days after the written petition is submitted to the

 Commission by the municipality annexing the land.
- Chap. 811 Amends the law relating to village elective offices by making HF 908 certain changes relating to the making of appointments to fill vacancies occurring in an office.
- Chap. 812 Provides that the county assessor has the authority to require HF 967 local assessors to deliver their tax records to the office of the county assessor at any time requested by him.

Hennepin County --

- Chap. 217 Authorizes the Hennepin County park reserve district to issue and sell up to \$8,000,000 in additional bonds for purposes of financing the purchase and improvement of park lands and facilities. Act becomes effective upon the approval of the majority of the board of park district commissioners.
- Chap. 465 Establishes tax rates in various independent school districts SF 1329 located in Hennepin County. Authorizes the increase of the permissible tax levy in such districts and prescribes conditions under which the act becomes effective.
- Chap. 477 Relates to elections in the Fort Snelling Reservation and establishes that part of the Reservation which is located in the 32nd District as a precinct. Provides for the appointment of election judges.
- Chap. 651 Provides that the judge of the probate court of Hennepin County HF 1940 may appoint two referees of probate. Outlines the necessary qualifications of such appointees.
- Chap. 738 Establishes the Hennepin County General Hospital, to be operated under the auspices of the Hennepin County Board. Provides that the hospital facilities are to render medical care to the poor and medically indigent and for instruction and scientific research.
- Chap. 782 Authorizes the expenditure of certain sums by the various county SF 1866 departments for salaries of county employees; further provides for a 5% increase in salary for the employees of the listed county departments retroactive to January 1, 1963 with a minimum increase of \$25.00 and a maximum increase of \$35.00 monthly. Provides for a similar increase effective January 1, 1964.

- Chap. 789 Provides for the redistricting of commissioner districts in the HF 475 City of Minneapolis for members of the Board of County Commissioners.
- Chap. 848 Establishes the office of the county medical examiner, outlines SF 1483 his duties, prescribes the method by which he is appointed and abolishes the office of county coroner in Hennepin County.
- Chap. 857 Increases the salaries of certain listed county officers in SF 1872 Hennepin County. Provides that the terms of this act become effective only upon approval by the majority of the governing body of the county.
- Chap. 883 Enlarges the boundaries of the Hennepin County Park Reserve

 HF 1867 District to include the City of Minneapolis and provides for

 the creation of an 11 member board of park district commissioners.

 Further provides for the bonding, budgeting or levying of taxes

 within the district, the participation in this effort by the board

 of commissioners and the services to be rendered by the various

 officers and departments of Hennepin County.
- Chap. 877 Relates to courts in Hennepin County, creates a municipal court of Hennepin County and outlines the jurisdiction and powers of the court. Adds two judges to the Minneapolis Municipal Court bringing the total to ten.

Ramsey County --

- Chap. 419 Provides for the disposition of the proceeds of certain bonds HF 727 issued by Ramsey County and the City of St. Paul pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1961, 374.03-.07 and 374.02, respectively.
- Chap. 556 Relates to the joint participation of Ramsey County and the

 HF 1776 City of St. Paul in the establishment, maintenance and operation
 of detention facilities, workhouse, workfarm or any combination
 thereof.
- Chap. 724 Empowers the Ramsey County Board to levy a one mill tax on all taxable property subject to the county library tax; to be used for the acquisition of library sites and the construction or renovation of library buildings.
- Chap. 728 Authorizes various municipalities within Ramsey County to form the Ramsey County League of Municipalities and provides for the appropriation of funds not to exceed .05 per capita in each municipality, or the maximum of \$1,250. This act is contingent upon the approval of the governing bodies of each of the various municipalities.

- Chap. 744 Establishes certain fees to be charged in adoption matters by SF 1749 the clerk of the juvenile court for the second judicial district in Ramsey County. Provides that the terms of the act will become effective upon the approval of the board of county commissioners of Ramsey County and compliance with Chapter 368, Laws of 1959.
- Chap. 745 Authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Ramsey County to expend funds not to exceed \$150,000 for the purpose of erecting and equipping a new morgue.
- Chap. 773 Allows the employment of 25 (was 18) deputy clerks of the Ramsey SF 1748 County District Court, and any county having more than 300,000 but less than 450,000 inhabitants. Contingent upon approval of Board of County Commissioners of Ramsey County.
- Chap. 774 Authorizes the Board of County Commissioners of Ramsey County to SF 1750 contract with private insurance companies for insurance and indemnity involving liability of the county for the negligent acts and omissions of its employees.
- Chap. 775 Relates to certain duties of the Ramsey County Auditor in regard SF 1751 to the sale of game, fish and trapping licenses.
- Chap. 776 Provides for the payment of a \$1.00 fee to the Sheriff of Ramsey SF 1785 County for receiving, indexing, and putting in line for service each summons and complaint left with him.
- Chap. 777 Authorizes the senior judge of the Ramsey County District Court SF 1788 to appoint a replacement for a civil service commissioner who has disqualified himself from participating in a disciplinary hearing.
- Chap. 852 Establishes certain regulations and provisions relating to retire-SF 1796 ment and retirement benefits for certain employees in the classified civil service of Ramsey County and authorizes the levying of necessary taxes to achieve the purposes of the act.
- Chap. 858

 Authorizes the City of St. Paul, the village of Maplewood, and Ramsey County to cooperate in the construction and financing of storm water sewer facilities that will serve each of the governmental units. Law becomes effective only after an agreement has been executed by the governing bodies of the City of St. Paul, the village of Maplewood, and Ramsey County.

St. Louis County --

Chap. 151 Makes certain minor amendments to the law relating to boards and HF 653 commissions that members of the county board may serve upon.

- Chap. 498 Removes the office of the county surveyor of St. Louis County SF 1174 from a special status by providing that the office upon the approval of the majority of the county board and upon compliance to other requirements shall come under the same provisions of state law relating to all county surveyors.
- Chap. 599 Makes certain changes in the county civil service law relating SF 1215 to the suspension of employees.
- Chap. 626 Amends the law relating to the work relief program in St. Louis
 HF 635 County by providing that the county may contract with the
 federal government, state government, or political subdivisions
 of the county for the services of work relief recipients.

CRIME AND CORRECTION

(See also Judiciary)

- Chap. 95 Appropriates to the Commissioner of Administration the sum of \$92,986 for the expenses of the Minnesota Youth Treatment Center for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963, and establishes the number of persons to be employed.
- Chap. 130 Provides that when an offender is sentenced to be imprisoned in a county jail, he may be imprisoned in a workfarm in the county in which he was tried. Further provides that if there is no workfarm in the county, the prisoner may be transferred to a workfarm in any county in the state in some instances.
- Chap. 452 Authorizes contiguous counties to cooperate in establishing and HF 1283 maintaining regional jails and workfarms for purposes of providing jail facilities with adequate work programs and rehabilitation services.
- Chap. 492 Authorizes the Commissioner of Corrections to accept the uncompensated and voluntary services of certain persons and agencies to assist the Department of Corrections in certain functions.
- Chap. 753 Creates the Criminal Code of 1963, a comprehensive law establishing regulations and procedures relating to all major aspects of crime and criminal prosecution. Amends various sections of the Minnesota Statute to conform to the law and repeals numerous sections of old laws now covered in the Criminal Code of 1963.
- Chap. 819 Makes certain changes in the law pertaining to the Board of HF 1379 Pardons and the granting of pardons and pardons extraordinary.
- Chap. 821 Changes the amount to be paid by the county district court to the sheriff from \$5 to \$10 to offset expenses incurred by his assistants in transporting certain minor persons to facilities operated by the Department of Corrections.
- Chap. 849 Relates to the issuance and execution of search warrants and provides for the grounds upon which such issuance may be made. Defines probable cause and outlines the procedures by which a warrant may be served.
- Chap. 850 Provides for the return of property obtained by illegal search spring and seizure and the suppression of its use as evidence when the judge of the appropriate district court grants the motion of an aggrieved party.

EDUCATION

Elementary, Secondary and General Education --

- Chap. 10 Repeals the law requiring the state to pay one half the cost HF 213 of library books purchased by Minnesota school districts.
- Chap. 12 Amends the law relating to the termination of the office of county superintendent of schools to include death of the incumbant while in office as a reason for abolishment of the position.
- Chap. 19 Eliminates school aid for teacher training departments in high schools and repeals the statutory authority for payment of state aid toward teacher training in secondary schools.
- Chap. 20 Permits payment of other types of school aid before payment HF 203 of transportation aid.
- Chap. 23 Reappropriates for the biennium beginning July 1, 1963 the unexpended balances remaining on June 30, 1961 of moneys allotted for educational television appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1959, Chapter 48; not withstanding provision of Extra Session Laws 1959, Chapter 48, Section 3.
- Chap. 48 Provides that all pupils in the eleventh and twelfth grades of public schools shall be required to enroll in the physical training program unless the local school board decides that these pupils need not participate.
- Chap. 203 Amends the law relating to special state aids to school districts to provide that the employment of a teacher who does not hold a valid teaching certificate or permit shall be cause for the withholding of special state aid to that district.
- Chap. 241 Amends the law relating to minimum wages by providing that the minimum wage requirements shall not apply to any minor engaged as a part time employee of any school district in the district's hot lunch program. Minor must be a full time student in order for minimum wage requirements to be waived.
- Chap. 246 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the deductions made from annuity upon resumption of teaching by members of the Teachers Retirement Association.
- Chap. 334 Prescribes certain changes in foundation program aid to schools. SF 581
- Chap. 371 Provides that the school districts throughout the state are authorized to borrow additional funds in accordance with anticipated tax revenues and state aids.

EDUCATION (cont.)

- Chap. 450 Provides that the first two years of a beginning teachers

 first teaching experience are probationary and states that
 during that period the contract of said teacher may or may
 not be renewed as the school board may decide. Further requires
 that written notice be given by the board before April 1 as to
 its decision regarding contract renewal.
- Chap. 465 Establishes tax rates in various independent school districts

 SF 1329 located in Hennepin County. Authorizes the increase of the permissible tax levy in such districts and prescribes conditions under which the act becomes effective.
- Chap. 530 Amends the law relating to school districts providing instruction in other districts by making certain changes pertaining to tuition and other aids received by the districts. Law applies specifically to the construction and remodeling of facilities with a primary purpose of providing instruction for handicapped and trainable children.
- Chap. 547 Establishes regulations and procedures providing for the consolHF 281 idation of school districts by means of including the territory
 of non-operating school districts within school districts maintaining classified elementary or secondary schools. Law further
 provides regulations pertaining to the dissolution of school
 districts both prior to and after July 1, 1965 and establishes
 regulations relating to private schools in non-operating districts.
- Chap. 549 Amends the law relating to the obligations for bonds issued by consolidated school districts by providing comprehensive regulations and procedures pertaining to the obligations incurred by the newly consolidated district for component parts of the district that existed previously as separate school districts.
- Chap. 601 Makes major amendments to various sections of the law relating SF 1331 to the maximum effort school loan fund. Amends the regulations and procedures relating to the manner of the issuance and sale of school loan bonds of the state. Makes various changes relating to the distribution of the proceeds from the sale of bonds for the making of debt service loans and capital loans to school districts.
- Chap. 663 Authorizes school districts to enter into contracts for the transportation of school children and to purchase gasoline for use by such contract carriers in transporting students to and from school.
- Chap. 701 Limits the total amount of taxes to be levied by and for any school district when such district has a population of not more than (1) 5,000 and not less than 2,500; (2) and less than 2,500.

EDUCATION (cont.)

Chap. 845 Includes any nurse, counselor, social worker or psychologist SF 1081 who has rendered or is rendering service in public schools in the Teachers Retirement Association and makes certain changes in the law pertaining to that organization.

Higher Education --

- Chap. 61 Provides for the terms of members filling vacancies on the SF 213 State College Board. Changes the term of office from four to six years after 1973 and provides for the election of a president by the members of the College Board.
- Chap. 62 Appropriates \$32,191.00 to the State College Board for national SF 330 defense student loan funds.
- Chap. 164 Reappropriates moneys for various state colleges and depart-SF 711 ments for land acquisition and development and for the construction and remodeling of buildings.
- Chap. 479 Authorizes the State College Board to issue revenue bonds

 SF 322 payable to the "College Board of the State of Minnesota Revenue
 Fund" and provides for the use of the money acquired by the
 sale of such bonds.
- Chap. 590 Amends the law relating to the awarding of degrees for the completion of studies in state colleges to provide that the State College Board has the authority to award the appropriate degree to persons completing the prescribed fifth year curriculum of studies.
- Chap. 689 Provides for the establishment of a technical and two year liberal arts college in Southwestern Minnesota and appropriates to the State College Board the sum of \$100,000 to be used in the initial stages of planning and construction. The law also makes certain changes pertaining to the Board of Directors of the State College Board. Further provides for the selection of a site for the school by a group composed of the President of the University of Minnesota, the Executive Director of the State College Board, the Commissioner of Education, the President of the State College Board, and the President of University High School, University of Minnesota, on or before January 1, 1964.
- Chap. 846 Provides that the State College Board may waive the tuition sF 1135 requirement for persons under the guardianship of the Commissioner of Public Welfare in certain instances.

GENERAL LEGISLATION

- Chap. 76 Authorizes the State Fire Marshall and his assistants to post signs SF 440 reading "No Smoking by Order of the State Fire Marshall" in areas where smoking would create a hazard. Provides penalty for noncompliance or destruction of the posted signs.
- Chap. 138 Prohibits the dropping of any object from an aircraft except loose water, loose fuel or loose sand ballast without prior written consent from the Commissioner of Aeronautics and the property owner or municipality where object may land.
- Chap. 207 Amends various sections of the law relating to free public recreational use of privately owned lands. Provides alternative methods for evidencing lands or waters subject to public recreational use.
- Chap. 245 Amends the law relating to the dumping of trash and garbage on or near public waters by listing specific types of refuse.
- Chap. 279 Amends the law relating to the style and type of seats in theaters and SF 441 halls to provide for more complete and detailed requirements.
- Chap. 545 Provides that effective January 1, 1964 all cigarette vending machines shall be required to have a clearly legible warning on the machine that forbids any person under 18 years of age from purchasing cigarettes from the machine. Law provides penalties for noncompliance to this rule on the part of cigarette machine owners or lessees.
- Chap. 562 Relates to unemployment compensation. Expands the group to be classified HF 1275 as employers.
- Chap. 593 Appropriates funds for the payment of claims against the state for SF 730 adjusted compensation to certain veterans of World War I, World War II, and the Korean Conflict.
- Chap. 635 Removes the previous restriction limiting the number of directors author-HF 1028 ized for Young Men's Christian Associations.
- Chap. 678 Provides that the Metropolitan Airports Commission shall be subject to SF 1846 Civil Defense regulations and required to establish an organization for Civil Defense in accord with the State Civil Defense Plan.
- Chap. 682 Relates to election contests involving the Federal Legislative Offices HF 1295 of senator or member of the house of representatives and defines the function of the courts in contest proceedings.
- Chap. 705 Requires that every warehouseman operating a public terminal warehouse SF 1013 within the switching limit of St. Paul, Minneapolis, and Duluth or any terminal point as described in Section 233.01, Subd. 3 shall publish annually in July, a schedule of storage rates for the ensuing year; further provides that the cost of receiving, handling and delivering grain shall not exceed .03 per bushel.

GENERAL LEGISLATION (cont.)

- Chap. 706 Changes certain provisions in the law relating to the disposition of SF 1063 license fees paid to the state by employment agencies.
- Chap. 719 Increases the maximum compensation that a deputy sheriff may receive while in attendance upon the district court and in charge of a jury to \$10 or as the judge may determine.
- Chap. 795 Amends the law relating to marriage regulations by making certain changes including increasing the minimum ages for marriage in certain categories. Minimum ages for marriage without consent is increased to 21 years for males and 18 years for females, and for marriage with consent to 18 and 16 years, respectively.
- Chap. 818 Amends the law prohibiting the sale of fireworks by legalizing sales at wholesale prices to persons holding valid permits for a fireworks display from a governmental subdivision of the state. Law also permits the sale of fireworks outside the state.
- Chap. 825 Relates to public indebtedness and authorizes the establishment of serial maturities for multiple issues and the provision of funds for the redemption of obligations before maturity and before the first redemption date.
- Chap. 855 Makes certain changes in sections of the law governing and regulating HF 1868 the game of bingo.
- Res. 3 Ratifies a proposed amendment to the Constitution of the United States of America to outlaw the poll tax.
- Res. 4 Memorializes the Postmaster General of the United States to issue a special stamp commemorating the Mayo Brothers on the centennial year of their birth.

HEALTH AND WELFARE

- Chap. 27 Authorizes boards of county commissioners to employ home aides to provide home nursing care services under the supervision of public health nurses.
- Chap. 34 Relates to frozen foods and specifies certain test standards of purity of foods after pasteurization.
- Chap. 45 Outlines procedures by which a Doctor of Osteopathy can gain license to practice medicine in the state. Provides for the addition of a Doctor of Osteopathy to the State Board of Medical Examiners.
- Chap. 146 Amends the laws relating to professional corporations in the state to provide that individual physicians may be classified as a corporation.
- Chap. 150 Provides that no communication or report furnished by physicians or other professional men to state agencies as required by law shall be made the subject matter or basis for any suit for slander or libel.
- Chap. 214 Amends the law relating to the state reformatory for men by eliminating SF 202 certain provisions of the law authorizing the placement of mentally deficient persons at the reformatory.
- Chap. 258 Makes certain changes in the laws relating to the admission of voluntary HF 386 patients to state mental hospitals and to the custody and restraint of patients. Provides that Sundays and legal holidays may no longer be counted as days when waiting periods are required.
- Chap. 283 Provides for the incorporation and regulation of voluntary non-profit HF 691 dental service plan corporations. Law incorporated into the existing statute pertaining to voluntary non-profit medical service plans.
- Chap. 296 Provides that aid to dependent children may be received for eligible SF 752 children who reside outside the state by following specified application procedures.
- Chap. 300 Establishes the regulations and the procedures whereby established

 SF 1366 hospital districts may be dissolved. Law also provides for the detachment from the existing hospital district of any city, village or town within that district.
- Chap. 401 Provides that the Commissioner of Public Welfare has authority to locate and use any records held by state agencies for purposes of assisting in the location of parents who have deserted or appear to have deserted their children.
- Chap. 410 Requires the cleaning, washing and bactericidal treatment of all containers used in the dispensing of soft drinks and other nonalcoholic beverages.

HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

- Chap. 480 Relates to public assistance; allows counties and county welfare SF 393 boards to file a lien for medical, surgical and hospital expenses paid or guaranteed by them.
- Chap. 489 Requires any person who is authorized to engage in the practice of healing to report to proper police authorities any injuries which appear to have arisen from the beating or maltreatment of minors under the age of 16.
- Chap. 517 Amends the law relating to accident and health insurance benefits by defining medical benefits to include treatment by all licensed practitioners unless the policy clearly states the practitioners whose services are covered.
- Chap. 595
 Establishes comprehensive rules, regulations and procedures relating to the providing of medical assistance for aged persons in the state. Covers the responsibilities and procedures involved in the program on the part of all agencies and persons concerned. Law covers all major areas relating to medical assistance including administration of the program, duties of state and county agencies, type and degree of medical care to be given, persons eligible, and the manner of payment for such medical programs.
- Chap. 600 Provides that academic education and vocational training at the State School at Owatonna shall be limited to those under 21 years of age. Further provides for the transfer of persons to the Owatonna State School from other state institutions.
- Chap. 655 Provides for standing appropriations to be held by the State Treasurer SF 178 to be paid the various counties to defray the cost of care for mentally deficient patients. Further provides for the sources of such funds.
- Chap. 662 Provides that the State Board of Health may exempt certain drugs from the restriction placed on the sale of drugs when there exists no danger of addiction forming addiction sustaining liability. Further provides that the State Board of Health may, upon reanalysis, cause any preparation heretofor exempted to be dispensed only by prescription.
- Chap. 703 Pertains to the payment of expenses and costs incurred by the hospital SF 365 or sanitorium in the treatment of a nonresident for tuberculosis.
- Chap. 738 Establishes a Hennepin County General Hospital to be operated under the auspices of the Hennepin County Board; provides that the hospital facilities are to render medical care to the poor and medically indigent and for instruction and scientific research.
- Chap. 752 Amends the law relating to aid to the blind by making certain changes pertaining to the determination of the amount of assistance to be given.

HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

- Chap. 756 Authorizes the State Board of Health to provide state aid funds to counties or combination of counties for purposes of assisting them in the establishment and operation of local tuberculosis control programs. Appropriates from the state treasury a total of \$60,000 to be used to assist the program in the fiscal years 1964 and 1965.
- Chap. 766 Amends the law relating to state departments and agencies by authorizing the State Board of Health to establish and operate preventive
 health services for state employees. Law transfers the present powers
 and duties in relation to health services from the Commissioners of
 Administration and Highways to the State Board of Health. Transfers
 present funds relating to health services from the Commissioners of
 Administration and Highways to the State Board of Health.
- Chap. 794 Provides that the Commissioner of Public Welfare, acting as a state SF 237 agency, shall enter into agreement with other state departments to meet all federal requirements relating to aid to dependent children. Expands the definition of the term "dependent children" and makes certain changes in the law outlining the duties of county welfare agencies to such children.
- Chap. 796 Amends the law relating to community mental health service programs SF 364 by making certain changes relating to county tax levies to assist the program, and in the organization and membership of community mental health boards.
- Chap. 830 Authorizes the Commissioner of Public Welfare to assist in the establishment of day time activity centers for the mentally retarded; provides methods by which any city, village or town may apply and receive grants-in-aid to assist communities and local nonprofit corporations in establishing these centers.
- Chap. 848 Establishes the office of the Hennepin County medical examiner, out-SF 1483 lines his duties, prescribes the method by which he is appointed and abolishes the office of county coroner in Hennepin County.
- Res. 6 Memorializes Congress to establish a central information agency to furnish information regarding the levels of Strontium 90 and Iodine 131 in the atmosphere and to establish standards for fallout and other radio-contaminants as they relate to the general health and welfare of the populace.

HIGHWAYS

General --

- Chap. 53 Provides for the issuance of one way trip permits under certain SF 553 conditions for motor vehicles and mobile homes owned by nonresidents.
- Chap. 57 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways may enter into agreements With utilities for the relocation of utility facilities when their present location interferes with the construction of an interstate highway if the cost of relocation does not exceed a lump sum payment of \$2,500. Further provides for methods of acquisition of land for the purpose of relocating these facilities.
- Chap. 74 Authorizes the use of Disaster Funds to provide aid for any city, vil-SF 306 lage, or borough which has encountered a disaster or unforeseen event resulting in undue and burdensome financial hardship.
- Chap. 75 Authorizes the use of Disaster Funds to provide aid for counties which have encountered a disaster or unforeseen event resulting in undue and burdensome financial hardship.
- Chap. 115 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways may authorize any studies SF 569 and investigations in cooperation with the governmental agencies of this or any other state, the federal government or any of its agencies whenever federal laws, or rules and regulations require such studies in order for Minnesota to receive federal aid.
- Chap. 143 Directs the Commissioner of Highways to designate, establish, and locate the routes of the Great River Road according to a specifically described route pattern.
- Chap. 168 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways shall designate an alternate HF 176 route for the Great River Road according to the prescribed route pattern.
- Chap. 169 Authorizes the county boards of the counties lying adjacent to the HF 177 Great River Road to provide financial assistance to agencies and commissions concerned with the construction, development and promotion of the Great River Road.
- Chap. 242 Amends the law relating to railroad bridges over highways to require SF 1010 that there shall be at least 14 feet of clear space for all railroad bridges over roads other than those on the state trunk highway system and interstate system for which the standard is 16 feet.
- Chap. 244 Amends the law relating to state aids to county highway systems to SF 305 provide that aids shall be given according to the incorporation census of cities, villages and boroughs incorporated during the interim period between the federal decennial census.
- Chap. 293 Provides for the extraordinary repairs and improvements of bridges and SF 313 culverts on and adjoining major highways and streets that are less than the minimum width established by law. Prescribes regulations that are to be followed by state and local governments in establishing such repairs and improvements.

- Chap. 309 Provides that any city, except cities of the first class, villages or boroughs may make advances from any funds available to it for the purposes of expediting construction and repair of its municipal state-aid street system provided that such advances shall not exceed 40% of its last apportionment. Further provides for repayment of the withdrawn funds.
- Chap. 333 Requires the Commissioner of Highways to keep accurate and complete SF 311 books as prescribed by the Public Examiner showing disbursements and receipts of the Trunk Highway Fund and further indicating the expenses of maintaining the Highway Department, the amounts of money expended in each county for trunk highways, any other money expended in connection with any other roads, and the amount of road equipment and material purchased and price paid for each item.
- Chap. 336 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways may, when construction work on a trunk highway makes passage impractical, provide a detour outside the limits of the trunk highway and may, upon request of local road authorities, expend funds to provide a route reasonably adequate to carry such detoured traffic.
- Chap. 455 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways may take corrective action seconding to prescribed conditions to remedy situations of abuse and default on the part of highway construction contractors.
- Chap. 456 Provides that the Commissioner of Highways may hire and employ registered land surveyors as consultants for purposes of preliminary highway surveying and planning. Law effective through the 1965 fiscal year.
- Chap. 458 Establishes in the state treasury a Minnesota Highway Safety Account and provides that the Minnesota Railroad and Warehouse Commission shall be responsible for the supervision, allocation and disbursement of the account. Amends various sections of the law relating to safety devices and safety regulations and prescribes the regulations whereby the Railroad and Warehouse Commission shall distribute funds from the account.
- Chap. 460 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to enter into agreements with authorities of adjoining states for the purpose of providing for the construction of connector segments of highways that will link the trunk highways of the state to the adjoining state's highway system. Law prescribes the procedures whereby the linkages may be effected and appropriates the funds necessary to achieve the purposes of the act.
- Chap. 515 Provides for interest payments to highway construction contractors in cases where final payment is not made within ninety days of the final completion of contracted work on trunk highways. Such interest payments are conditional upon various requirements and the type of contract agreement.

- Chap. 554 Provides that in certain cases and at his discretion, the Commissioner

 HF 955 of Highways may authorize payment of moving expenses of personal property

 belonging to a person whose lands have been acquired by the state through

 eminent domain proceedings.
- Chap. 589 Amends the law relating to the apportionment of funds for roads included within the county state-aid highway system by providing for the allocation of funds for certain roads within the system for purposes of providing public access routes to state parks. Law applies to both presently existing as well as planned roads and access routes whether they are already within state parks or provide access to state parks.
- Chap. 656 Relates to the arbitration of controversies arising out of contracts SF 312 for the construction or repair of state trunk highways.
- Chap. 704 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to acquire lands for the purpose of relocating railroad tracks, and to exchange these lands or other lands owned by the state in fee for trunk highway purposes, but not needed, for lands owned by a railroad company which are needed for highway purposes; further appropriates necessary funds to carry out any exchange.
- Chap. 734 Provides for the allocations of county state aid highway funds to town-SF 1260 ships and provides that each county board so allocating such funds may devise a formula so as to effect an equitable distribution of these funds to the various towns.
- Chap. 748 Regulates the display of sale prices on motor fuels to preclude deceptive and misleading advertising and to prevent fraud in connection with the sale of such fuel.
- Chap. 787 Authorizes the City of Minneapolis to contract with the Commissioner of Highways and to advance funds or engineering services or both, to expedite trunk highway construction within the city. Further authorizes the City of Minneapolis to issue bonds for such purpose not to exceed \$10,000,000, and authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to enter into trunk highway contracts with the City of Minneapolis and repay that city out of the Trunk Highway Fund.
- Chap. 788 Provides that the earnings in the Trunk Highway Fund from funds advanced by the City of St. Paul shall inure to the benefit of that city.
- Chap. 875 Establishes a nine member Mississippi River Parkway Commission to cooperate with Federal officials in the planning, construction and maintenance of the Mississippi River Parkway.

Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulations --

Chap. 52 Requires persons, copartnerships or corporations selling mobile homes to obtain a license from the registrar of motor vehicles.

- Chap. 63 Authorizes reciprocity privileges for nonresident motor vehicle dealers SF 384 to include exemptions from taxes or fees on a vehicle owned by a person, firm or corporation displaying dealer or manufacturers plates provided that such operation is not for the purpose of soliciting the sale of the vehicle. Further provides that no greater privileges will be granted than are given by the laws of his own jurisdiction.
- Chap. 93 Requires all new motor vehicles sold after January 1, 1964 which are not exempt from Minnesota license fees and excluding buses, school buses, tractors and trucks, to be equipped for the installation of seat belts. Further provides that seat belts are to be installed within 30 days of purchase and establishes a standard of quality for seat belts. States that the failure to use or install seat belts shall not be admissable as evidence in any litigation involving personal injury.
- Chap. 125 Increases the fee for issuance of license plates, tax exempt plates, or duplicate number plates by \$.50. Sets the increase in fee at \$.25 for the issuance of a single number plate or single duplicate number plate. Effective November 15, 1963 for the year 1964 and subsequent years.
- Chap. 147 Makes certain changes in the law relating to motor vehicle tax refunds HF 476 for vehicles permanently removed from the state.
- Chap. 184 Amends the law relating to chauffeurs' licenses and license fees to SF 457 provide for the expiration of the license on the licensee's birthday and for certain changes in license fees.
- Chap. 206 Amends the law requiring the immediate personal possession of drivers licenses to provide that there shall be no conviction of a person violating this requirement, providing the license is produced in court and proof can be shown that the person was validly licensed at the time of arrest.
- Chap. 280 Amends the law relating to the filing of accident reports to the Highway SF 573 Department to provide that a report shall be filed for any accident involving at least \$100 in total property damages.
- Chap. 357 Amends the laws relating to electronic traffic signals and pedestrian control devices to provide for more comprehensive regulation and coordination of both pedestrian and traffic movements.
- Chap. 382 Increases the minimum age for driving licenses and permits from 15 to 16 years. Law authorizes instruction permits and restricted licenses for those only 15 years old in accordance with specifically prescribed regulations and conditions.
- Chap. 393 Provides that no person shall receive a drivers license until he has surrendered all other valid licenses issued in other jurisdictions; statesthat no person shall be permitted to possess more than one valid license at a time.

- Chap. 399 Relates to the registration of motor vehicle carriers operating in interstate commerce with the Railroad and Warehouse Commission and provides penalties for noncompliance with the regulations set down by the Commissioner.
- Chap. 532 Makes certain amendments to the law relating to authorized gross weight limitations for various type vehicles and the combination of vehicles by establishing a new gross weight schedule and by making certain other changes.
- Chap. 579 Provides method for the registering of certain makes of motor vehicles SF 128 manufactured between the years 1925 and 1948 as classic cars.
- Chap. 580 Prohibits the ownership of motor vehicles by persons under 18 except under certain conditions; provides that any person who knowingly sells a motor vehicle to anyone who fails to qualify for ownership under this act shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and requires additional statements for registration of vehicles sold under this act.
- Chap. 597 Amends the section of the law defining gross weight of trucks, tractors, SF 1070 truck tractors and semitrailers by defining gross weight as it applies to farm trucks and truck tractors carrying agricultural commodities and products.
- Chap. 605 Amends the law requiring operation certificates or permits for motor sF 1425 vehicle carrier operations by providing for certain changes relating to the suspension or revocation of such permits or certificates.
- Chap. 634 Provides that confidential information from highway accident reports

 HF 947 may be supplied to surviving spouses, surviving next of kin, and certain other parties concerned with a person involved in a traffic accident.
- Chap. 747 Provides that distributor trailers not exceeding 8500 lbs. gross weight specified and used solely for transporting and distributing dry fertilizer need not be equipped with brakes which can be operated from the cab of a towing vehicle.
- Chap. 750 Provides that when a person has executed a written agreement for the hire or rent of a motor vehicle and who intends to defraud the owner and who subsequently fails to return the vehicle after written demands have been made, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor. Further prescribes the methods by which written demands may be made by the owner of such a vehicle.
- Chap. 770 Amends the law relating to maximum length limitations for certain vehicles by providing that certain type motor vehicle transports may exceed listed limits by not more than five feet. Establishes 55 feet as the maximum length for any combination of vehicles used as a motor vehicle transport.

- Chap. 800 Provides that all drivers' license certificates issued on or before SF 1041 July 1, 1964 shall be either all plastic or laminated plastic licenses. Funds necessary to defray laminating expenses are appropriated from the Trunk Highway Fund.
- Chap. 843 Establishes the maximum speed limit in an urban area at 30 miles per SF 630 hour, 65 miles per hour in other locations during the daytime, and 55 miles per hour at night and provides that the Commissioner may establish maximum and minimum speed limits outside municipal limits as he deems necessary for safe and reasonable driving.

JUDICIARY

- Chap. 13 Amends the Minnesota Probate Code by adding a section relating to SF 195 testamentary additions to trusts. Establishes the conditions and procedures to be followed relating to amended trusts.
- Chap. 51 Allows a Municipal Judge, Court Commissioner or Probate Judge to witness SF 378 the drawing of the names of the Grand Jurors in the absence of a Justice of the Peace.
- Chap. 335 Provides that when special circumstances warrant, the deputy commissioner of corrections may, with the approval of the commissioner, appoint an officer of the Adult Corrections Commission to serve as chairman, and delegate to such officer his powers and duties as chairman of the commission.
- Chap. 351 Makes various changes in the law relating to the District Court of the HF 1480 Ninth Judicial District. Prescribes the rules relating to judges within the district and defines the county areas comprising the district.
- Chap. 441 Relates to the salaries of certain municipal and probate judges. SF 1630
- Chap. 516 Amends various sections of the juvenile code relating to juvenile courts.

 HF 602 Makes various changes in the law relating to trial proceedings and procedures in the prosecution of juveniles for general offenses and offenses relating to highway traffic and water safety.
- Chap. 533 Amends the law relating to the required annual meeting of district court HF 1508 judges by providing that in cases where there is a tie vote for the election of a presiding judge that the judge who is senior in service shall be the chief judge.
- Chap. 622 Amends the law relating to the compensation of clerks of district courts by making certain changes in county size classifications and the compensation schedule.
- Chap. 630 Amends the law relating to municipal courts by authorizing the creation of the office of special municipal judge within municipal courts already organized. Office is created by resolution and must be adopted by a four-fifths majority of the entire governing body of the municipality concerned.
- Chap. 679 Increases the salaries of district court reporters to \$9,000 per year. SF 221
- Chap. 694 Amends the law relating to probation officers serving juvenile courts by making certain changes pertaining to the reimbursement of counties for costs incurred in providing probation and parole services.
- Chap. 716 Alters the general terms of the District Court in the Fifth Judicial HF 1174 District.

JUDICIARY (cont.)

- Chap. 718 Provides that the moneys collected in fees from bar examination

 HF 1194 applicants shall be paid to the State Treasurer, and used for payment of compensation and expenses of the bar examiners and for otherwise regulating the practice of law. Further provides that the moneys in this fund shall never cancel.
- Chap. 722 Relates to the partitioning of personal property in probate proceedings HF 1391 when it appears to the court that two or more distributees are entitled to the distribution of undivided interests in certain property.
- Chap. 723 Alters the terms of the district court in Cook and St. Louis Counties HF 1490 in the Sixth Judicial District.
- Chap. 739 Provides for retirement and compensation allowances for district judges. SF 883
- Chap. 749 Relates to the limitation of actions for sales or use tax and provides that when a cause of action for sales or use taxes imposed by any other state has accrued at the time the tax first became due and payable, any action must be brought within two years.
- Chap. 755 Amends the law relating to conciliation courts by increasing filing fees HF 641 to \$3.00.
- Chap. 758 Creates the office of Administrative Assistant to the Supreme Court and HF 929 preacribes the powers and duties of the office. Also provides for annual conferences of judges and for the reimbursement of necessary expenses incurred by judges while attending such conferences.
- Chap. 760 Authorizes the Supreme Court to appoint resigned judges of the Supreme HF 1301 Court to serve as Commissioners of the Supreme Court according to the prescribed conditions.
- Chap. 785 Sets the maximum salary for the assignment clerk and his assistant at SF 1871 \$8,250 and \$6,600, respectively, in the Fourth Judicial District Court.
- Chap. 806 Establishes a Civil Appeal Code encompassing various changes and amend-HF 163 ments made to the law relating to appeals from district courts. The Civil Appeal Code replaces Appeals from District Court as the chapter heading in Minnesota Statutes.
- Chap. 809 Provides for judicial review of the decisions and rulings of administra-HF 876 tive state agencies according to the prescribed conditions and procedures.
- Chap. 824 Provides that the salaries of two of the judges of the Minneapolis HF 1917 Municipal Court shall be paid by Hennepin County.

JUDICIARY (cont.)

- Chap. 838 Appropriates to the State Supreme Court certain moneys from the general fund to be expended for legal fees and appeal expenses incurred by persons convicted of a felony in a district court, who are unable, due to poverty, to meet these expenses themselves, and who are without council and are acting in good faith and upon reasonable grounds. Prescribes the method by which such convicted persons may apply for the use of such funds and obtain the services of an attorney.
- Chap. 844 Relates to the compensation and allowances to be granted the widow of SF 813 judges of a district or Supreme Court.
- Chap. 860 Amends the law relating to the judicial districts in the state by specific authorizing additional judges in certain of the districts.
- Chap. 863 Increases the annual basic salary for district court judges to \$18,500. HF 1157
- Chap. 864 Increases the annual salary for Supreme Court judges to \$23,500 for HF 1229 the chief judge and \$22,500 for associate judges.

MINICIPALITIES

- Chap. 158 Makes certain changes in the law relating to per diem payments to city officials in cities or villages containing iron ore resources.
- Chap. 257 Amends the law relating to the village powers of certain towns to provide that such towns may also exercise the rights of eminent domain.
- Chap. 354 Provides that the governing body of certain cities may expend up to HF 1642 \$1,000 annually for purposes of advertising the city and its resources and advantages.
- Chap. 535 Provides that for the election of town officers in all towns other than those within 30 miles of a city of the first class, polls shall open no later than 10:00 A.M. and shall close no earlier than 5:00 P.M. Provides for certain other time options in accordance with town board resolutions.
- Chap. 609 Makes certain changes in the law authorizing adjoining villages or towns 5F 1564 to maintain a common cemetery by providing for increases in the authorized tax levies necessary to maintain such a cemetery.
- Chap. 621 Makes certain changes in several sections of the law relating to the HF 159 annexation of unincorporated property by municipalities.
- Chap. 630 Amends the law relating to municipal courts by authorizing the creation HF 740 of the office of special municipal judge within municipal courts already organized. Office is created by resolution and must be adopted by a fourfifths majority of the entire governing body of the municipality concerned.
- Chap. 646 Makes certain changes in the law governing the election of aldermen in HF 1834 cities of the fourth class and provides that the mayor shall receive \$200 and aldermen \$100 per year. Also provides for the issuance of certificates of indebtedness for various purposes according to prescribed procedures.
- Chap. 696 Amends various sections of the law relating to water and sewer systems HF 1561 and sewage disposal plants in cities of the second, third, and fourth class, villages and boroughs by authorizing certain class municipalities and villages to build or otherwise obtain waterworks systems. Makes certain changes relating to the financing of water and sewer systems.
- Chap. 771 Makes various changes in the laws regulating special assessments and SF 1233 local improvements made by municipalities.
- Chap. 798 Provides that every municipality is subject to liability within certain limits for its torts and those of its officers, employees, and agents acting within the scope of their employment or duties, whether arising from a governmental or proprietary function. Further provides that school districts retain their immunity. An interim commission has been created to investigate and study the doctrine of governmental immunity, liability, and suits against the state and its political subdivisions.

MUNICIPALITIES (cont.)

Chap. 807 Amends the law relating to city and village incorporation, detachment and annexation by making certain changes relating to the annexation of incorporated and unincorporated lands to municipalities and the detachment of property from a municipality. Changes also made in sections of the laws relating to village incorporation and the commission concerned with municipal annexation and village incorporations. Further provides that written objections to the annexation of land by another municipality abutting the land to be annexed must be filed with the commission within 30 days after the written petition is submitted to the commission by the municipality annexing the land.

MINICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class

General --

- Chap. 3 Provides that with the exception of color and special information, the traffic tickets issued by the Metropolitan Airports Commission shall conform to the traffic tickets of the city of the first class in whose courts its orders and regulations are enforced.
- Chap. 86 Provides that the commissioners of any public corporation created in the connection with aeronautics may establish charges for the use of airport facilities so as to make such facilities self liquidating.
- Chap. 179 Amends the law relating to the distribution of state publications and HF 920 reports by providing that four copies will be issued to the Minnesota Historical Society and one copy issued to the public libraries of any city of the first class.
- Chap. 247 Makes certain amendments to the law relating to the powers and duties HF 472 of port authorities in cities of the first class.
- Chap. 277 Provides that the city clerk in each city of the first class in all counties of over 300,000 population shall charge \$.50 for the filing of each document.
- Chap. 316 Authorizes the appointment of an executive secretary for employee retirement associations in cities of the first class and provides that the appointment is to be based on a Civil Service Exam.
- Chap. 317 Provides for various changes in the authority of the retirement board to invest moneys derived from retirement funds in cities of the first class.
- Chap. 374 Amends sections of the law relating to retirement allowances and benefits SF 1436 for employees of cities of the first class. Changes made in such categories as eligible personnel, disability allowances, refunds, and salary contributions and deductions.
- Chap. 425 Makes certain changes in the laws governing the sale of property in port HF 1087 and industrial development districts by port authorities in cities of the first class.
- Chap. 504 Amends various sections of the law relating to vehicle traffic and pedestrian regulation in cities of the first class by providing regulations pertaining to vehicle traffic on certain streets. Provides for the establishment and operation of pedestrian malls and establishes the provisions necessary for the adoption of ordinances limiting vehicle traffic on streets in the central business district. Law further provides for the assessment and taxation of costs relating to the establishment, operations and necessary improvements of such pedestrian malls, as well as for appeals from such ordinances and assessments.
- Chap. 564 Relates to the powers and duties of port authorities in cities of the HF 1764 first class and the advancement of money or credit from its general fund.

- Chap. 700 Authorizes certain cities of the first class to prepare and adopt a study and plan for sewage services within and without its boundaries. Authorizes the cities to expend up to \$300,000 in borrowed funds for the study and plan. Permits the city to issue and sell up to \$300,000 in general obligation bonds to provide the necessary funds.
- Chap. 786 Relates to retirement allowances for court reporters of municipal courts SF 1873 in cities of the first class.
- Chap. 802 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the compulsory retirement SF 1568 of fire and police department personnel in cities of the first class.
- Chap. 866 Amends the law relating to the Metropolitan Planning Commission by making the terms of office of commission members, authorized mill levies for the support of the commission, and the duties of the commission in relation to the legislature. Provides that the commission shall make a biennial report to the legislature concerning its finances and activities.

Duluth --

- Chap. 208 Authorizes the city council to annually levy sufficient taxes to meet HF 737 certain costs and expenses relating to firemen's relief.
- Chap. 253 Establishes procedures and regulations relating to the election of directors for special school district number 3, Duluth.
- Chap. 359 Amends the law relating to the Conciliation Court by providing that the Conciliation Court has jurisdiction in civil actions and proceedings if the damages or other considerations do not exceed a total amount of \$200.
- Chap. 360 Amends the law relating to the filing of baliff's bonds in the Duluth HF 816 Municipal Court.
- Chap. 361 Eliminates the jury fee of \$3.00 from the law relating to the trial of the 819 criminal cases in the municipal court.
- Chap. 364 Amends various sections of the law relating to jury selection and proce-HF 822 dures in the municipal court.
- Chap. 365 Increases the amount of certain clerk fees charged in civil cases in the HF 823 municipal court.
- Chap. 366 Increases certain fees charged in the conciliation court. HF 824
- Chap. 367 Amends the law relating to the filing of bonds by clerks and deputy clerks employed in the municipal court and establishes procedures relating to the destruction or disposal of certain court records.

- Chap. 470 Authorizes Special School District Number 3 to operate public recreation programs for adults and school children within the district. Facilities relating to the program shall be used primarily for conducting the regular school curriculum and related activities. Act permits the appropriation of taxes necessary to finance such a program.
- Chap. 474 Authorizes that the cities of Duluth and Cloquet may take joint action to establish, operate and maintain a water supply system from Lake Superior that will be used to help supply the water needs of the two cities. Provides for the close cooperation between the two cities in the subsidizing and financing of the system by various means such as grants, loans and bonds. Authorizes the establishing of rules and regulations relating to the operating and maintenance of such a system.
- Chap. 632 Increases the basic clerks fee from \$1.00 to \$2.00 in the Conciliation HF 817 Court.
- Chap. 697 Makes various changes in the salary schedule for certain officers in the Municipal Court.

Minneapolis --

- Chap. 275 Gives the Ordinance Violation Bureau of the City of Minneapolis authority to deal with violations against ordinance relating to the keeping of dogs. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 315 Makes certain changes in the laws dealing with the Policemen's Pension SF 1354 Association and Policemen's Pension Fund in the City of Minneapolis. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 318 Provides that the governing body of the City of Minneapolis shall each year levy a tax on all taxable property within the city to pay the estimated costs due and payable by the Minneapolis Fire Department Relief Association. Further provides that such tax shall not exceed 1 3/4 mills and calls for the increase of the contribution by firemen in the event that the tax levy is insufficient. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021
- Chap. 405 Authorizes the City of Minneapolis to rezone lots or tracts of lands

 HF 1627 in certain situations without the consent of land owners in the immediate vicinity. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.

- Chap. 445
 SF 1353
 Allows the mayor of Minneapolis to appoint any suitable person as an administrative assistant after approval of this act by the majority of the governing body of the City of Minneapolis and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 645

 Makes major amendments to various sections of the law governing the special school district number 1 of the City of Minneapolis. Act becomes effective when approved by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of the members of the board of education of that district, and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 727

 Authorizes the governing body of the City of Minneapolis to reimburse any city employee who uses his own automobile in the performance of his public duties at a rate to be established by that body. Contingent upon approval of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 746 Establishes the Minneapolis Municipal Court clerks salaries at \$8,240 sf 1868 annually effective January 1, 1963.
- Chap. 780 Relates to the levy of an annual tax by the governing body of the City of Minneapolis for all purposes of its department of public relief; changes the maximum tax levy from 16 to nine mills on all taxable real and personal property within the city. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 783 Provides for the appointment of a case-work supervisor by the chief SF 1867 probation officer of the Minneapolis Municipal Court and provides for the salaries of the case-work supervisor, other probation officers and clerical employees.
- Chap. 784 Relates to the salaries and yearly increases to be paid deputy clerks SF 1869 of the Minneapolis Municipal Court.
- Chap. 787
 Authorizes the City of Minneapolis to contract with the Commissioner of Highways and to advance funds or engineering services or both, to expedite trunk highway construction within the city. Further authorizes the City of Minneapolis to issue bonds for such purpose not to exceed \$10,000,000, and authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to enter into trunk highway contracts with the City of Minneapolis and repay that city out of the Trunk Highway Fund. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 805
 Provides that the annual salary of the mayor shall be \$16,000 and that the mayor shall deposit with the city tresurer fees and other compensation that he receives in performing certain functions. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.

- Chap. 824 Provides that the salaries of two of the judges of the Minneapolis HF 1917 Municipal Court shall be paid by Hennepin County.
- Chap. 826 Authorizes the payment of compensation under an annual pay plan in the HF 1981 City of Minneapolis in certain cases. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 856
 Fixes the annual salary of aldermen at a sum not to exceed \$9,000.

 SF 1870
 Provides that fees and other listed compensation received by aldermen shall be deposited in the city treasury. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 882 Requires the Board of Trustees of the Minneapolis-St. Paul Sanitary
 HF 1825 District to adopt a comprehensive plan for the construction and financing
 of facilities required by the district. Act becomes effective when
 approved by a resolution adopted by a majority of the members of the
 board of trustees of the Minneapolis-St. Paul Sanitary District and
 upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 885 Increases the annual salary of Minneapolis Municipal Court judges to HF 1995 \$16,000.

St. Paul --

- Chap. 221 Makes certain changes in the law relating to retirement pension privileges and options available to members of the Firemen's Relief Association.

 Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 254

 Authorizes the Port Authority of the City of St. Paul to use allocated funds for the development of recreational sites on lands within the port district and adjacent to the Mississippi River. Act becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the members of the board of commissioners of the Port Authority of the city and by a majority of the members of the common council of the city, and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 268 Authorizes the city council, upon the recommendation of the city comptroller, to establish regular payroll periods and pay days for city employees. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961. Section 645.021.
- Chap. 269 Provides that the city council may, by unanimous action by resolution, HF 442 authorize the city clerk to instruct for any election after the first election of each calendar year only the election judges designated by the city clerk. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.

- Chap. 271 Amends certain sections of the law relating to pensions for police HF 746 department personnel and their dependents. Law more clearly defines the classes eligible for pensions. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 417 Provides that the city council of the City of St. Paul may waive the HF 283 resident or elector requirements for an applicant to fill the position of patrolman in that city. Further provides that the terms of this act shall not become effective until its approval by a majority of the governing body of the City of St. Paul and compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 419 Provides for the disposition of the proceeds of certain bonds issued

 HF 727 by Ramsey County and the City of St. Paul pursuant to Minnesota Statutes
 1961, 374.03-.07 and 374.02, respectively.
- Chap. 420 Authorizes the use of specially marked patrol vehicles by the Commissioner of Public Safety in the City of St. Paul and establishes various regulations dealing with the number and use of such vehicles. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 467 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways according to prescribed conditions SF 1349 to permit the use of airspace above and below a certain trunk highway right of way for purposes of establishing a parking facility that may be used by a certain charitable hospital.
- Chap. 469 Provides that additional deputy clerks may be employed in the Municipal SF 1417 Court.
- Chap. 514 Provides that the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of SF 1740 St. Paul shall consist of seven commissioners. Also provides for the establishment of a technical advisory committee to advise the authority. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 543 Authorizes the conveyance of excess real estate lands originally HF 1820 acquired by the state for trunk highway purposes to the Housing and Redevelopment Authority of the City of St. Paul.
- Chap. 544 Authorizes the City of St. Paul to issue and sell up to \$1,500,000 HF 1874 in general obligation bonds for purposes of acquiring additional funds to be used for the construction and equipping of a technical-vocational school. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 556 Relates to the joint participation of Ramsey County and the City of St. HF 1776 Paul in the establishment, maintenance and operation of detention facilities, workhouse, workfarm or any combination thereof.

- Chap. 629 Establishes procedures whereby the St. Paul City Council may transfer other city funds to supply deficiencies in certain school funds. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 698 Authorizes the City of St. Paul to acquire sites for the purpose of constructing auxiliary fire stations to be used as part of the public fire fighting facilities of the city. Authorizes the city to borrow up to \$400,000 for the project and to issue and sell general obligation bonds not to exceed \$400,000 for purposes of repaying the amount of funds borrowed. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 726
 Provides that the governing body of the City of St. Paul may appropriate necessary funds to provide membership of the city in state and national associations of a civic, educational, or governmental nature which have as their purpose the betterment of municipal governmental functioning.

 Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 729 Makes certain changes in the law pertaining to severance pay to employees of the City of St. Paul. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 736 Provides for the addition of one Municipal Court judge in the City of HF 679 St. Paul bringing the total to five.
- Chap. 788 Provides that the earnings in the Trunk Highway Fund from funds advanced HF 1667 by the City of St. Paul shall inure to the benefit of that city.
- Chap. 851
 SF 1739
 Establishes certain regulations and provisions relating to the retirement of employees in the classified civil service of the City of St.

 Paul. Law provides certain retirement benefits for personnel concerned and authorizes the levying of necessary taxes to achieve the purposes of the act. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 858
 Authorizes the City of St. Paul, the village of Maplewood, and Ramsey
 Gounty to cooperate in the construction and financing of storm water
 sewer facilities that will serve each of the governmental units. Law
 becomes effective only after an agreement has been executed by the
 governing bodies of the City of St. Paul, the village of Maplewood,
 and Ramsey County, and upon compliance with the provisions of Minnesota
 Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.

- Chap. 867 Establishes the annual salaries of the mayor, comptroller and city council. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 878 Increases the annual salary to be paid the St. Paul Municipal Judges to HF 677 \$15,000.
- Chap. 881

 Authorizes the City of St. Paul to issue general obligation bonds to raise funds not to exceed 1/3 of the cost of each of the urban renewal development projects as approved by the Housing and Redevelopment Authority. Law becomes effective upon approval by a majority vote of the governing body of the city and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.
- Chap. 882 Requires the Board of Trustees of the Minneapolis-St. Paul Sanitary
 HF 1825 District to adopt a comprehensive plan for the construction and
 financing of facilities required by the district. Act becomes effective
 when approved by a resolution adopted by a majority of the members of
 the board of trustees of the Minneapolis-St. Paul Sanitary District
 and upon compliance with Minnesota Statutes 1961, Section 645.021.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

- Chap. 105
 Provides for the exemption from inheritance tax the value of an annuity or other payment receivable by any beneficiary other than the executor if received under a retirement annuity contract purchased by an employee organization referred to in Section 503(b) (1) (2) or (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and which is exempt under Section 501(a) of such code. This exemption is applicable in all cases when death occurs after July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 197 Provides certain optional annuity payments to surviving spouses of HF 254 members of the State Employee Retirement Association according to specific regulations and requirements.
- Chap. 246 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the deductions made from annuity upon resumption of teaching by members of the Teachers Retirement Association.
- Chap. 315 Makes certain changes in the laws dealing with the Policemen's Pension SF 1354 Association and Policemen's Pension Fund in the city of Minneapolis.
- Chap. 316 Authorizes the appointment of an executive secretary for employee secretary for employee retirement associations in cities of the first class and provides that the appointment is to be based on a Civil Service Exam.
- Chap. 383 Makes extensive changes in the laws pertaining to the State Employees HF 260 Retirement Association.
- Chap. 427 Provides that any former member of the State Employees Retirement

 HF 1511 Association who is again entitled to salary or wages from the state

 may earn up to \$1,200 a year without losing his annuity or retirement

 for his period of employment.
- Chap. 428 Provides benefits for total and permanent disability for members of the Public Employee Retirement Association under certain conditions.
- Chap. 440 Allows persons to waive all claims for retirement benefits due to SF 1270 membership in any religious organization which has been organized five years or more as of January 1, 1963, and whose customs forbid membership in public retirement associations if said persons file an application of exemption.
- Chap. 449 Provides survivorship benefits to the widows of certain county highway HF 654 department employees.
- Chap. 481 Permits the State College Board to purchase retirement annuities for SF 834 employees. Establishes an annuity account in the State Treasury.
- Chap. 521 Amends the law relating to relief and retirement funds by providing that no hereinafter authorized increases in pensions, annuities, or retirement payments shall be given unless an official request is made in writing by the recipient, annuitant, or pensioner to the appropriate retirement association.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (cont.)

- Chap. 584 Provides that the treasurer of each employing school district and other HF 693 managing bodies of schools and institutions to which Extra Session Laws 1957, Chapter 16 applies shall issue quarterly reports and transmit all monies collected for the Teachers Retirement Fund to the State Treasurer.
- Chap. 585 Provides for the election and terms of the members of the Board of HF 700 Trustees of the Teachers Retirement Board.
- Chap. 586 Provides for the method of computing the annuities of members of the HF 750 Teachers Retirement Association in certain cases.
- Chap. 639 Amends the law relating to retirement benefits available to fire and police personnel by making certain changes including the providing of alternative methods in which annuities and survivor benefits may be received.
- Chap. 641 Makes major changes and amendments to various sections of the laws governing Public Employees Retirement Association retirement benefits. Numerous changes made in such categories as refunds, annuities, elegibility and accrual of benefits.
- Chap. 699 Provides for the discharge of certain indebtedness owed to the Public HF 1807 Employees Retirement Association by former deceased members. Payment of such indebtedness shall be paid to the Association by the representative of the former members' estate.
- Chap. 741 Provides for annuities to certain legislative employees through the SF 983 State Employees Retirement Association.
- Chap. 814 Changes the section of the State Employees Retirement Association law relating to a retirement annuity formula to correspond to changes made by an earlier law.
- Chap. 845
 SF 1081
 Includes any nurse, counselor, social worker or psychologist who has rendered or is rendering service in public schools in the Teachers Retirement Association and makes certain chapges in the law pertaining to that organization.
- Chap. 853
 Amends sections of the Public Employee Retirement Association law relating to annuities by making certain changes pertaining to the reinstatement of certain annuities for public employees who resumed public employment after previously retiring. Law establishes regulations relating to the reinstatement of annuities for personnel employed in emergency police services.

STATE GOVERNMENTS

Constitutional Amendments --

- Chap. 99 Prohibits the amendment, modification or repeal for a period of 25 years of the laws of Minnesota relating to taxation of taconite and semi-taconite, and facilities for the mining, production and beneficiation thereof, and to taxes imposed upon or required to be paid with respect to the mining, production or beneficiation of copper, copper-nickel, and nickel in the state. This amendment will become Article XXI of the State Constitution and becomes effective upon approval by the voters of the state in the 1964 general election.
- Chap. 870 Proposes various amendments to the state constitution concerning SF 222 obsolete language and other provisions relating to such constitutional categories as the legislature, elections, and women's suffrage.

Examining and Licensing Boards --

- Chap. 45 Outlines procedures by which a Doctor of Osteopathy can gain license spractice medicine in the state. Provides for the addition of a Doctor of Osteopathy to the State Board of Medical Examiners.
- Chap. 102 Provides that any person holding a milk and cream testing license who does not renew his license within one year of its expiration date (except when engaged in military service) shall be required to prove his competency before a license will be issued. The commissioner may require any other person seeking renewal of his license to prove his competency in the same manner.
- Chap. 145 Amends the law relating to the licensing of certified public accountants in the state. Also makes changes in the regulations governing the State Board of Accountancy.
- Chap. 178 Increases authorized per diem payments to \$25 per day for members of the State Board of Podiatry.
- Chap. 633 Provides that certain listed professional and regulatory examining HF 918 and licensing boards must now come under the regulations and laws governing administrative agencies and boards.
- Chap. 757 Establishes the annual salary of the Secretary of the Board of Barber HF 749 Examiners at \$6,000 and the compensation of members of the board at \$25.00 per day for each day of actual service rendered.

Major Appropriations --

- Chap. 1 State Building Bill. Provides for the issuance and sale of bonds of the State of Minnesota in the amount of \$29,361,000 for purposes of appropriating funds designated for various state buildings and facilities under Extra Session Laws 1961, Chapter 72. Law describes the various conditions relating to the sale of bonds including interest rates, dates of maturity, and manner and means of payment for such bonds by the state; and further states the manner in which moneys accruing from the sale of bonds are to be expended. Repeals Section 14 of the 1961 law relating to the method of raising revenue for appropriations.
- Chap. 62 Appropriates \$32,191 to the State College Board for National Defense SF 330 Student Loan funds.
- Chap. 762 Appropriates \$750,000 to the development revolving fund created by the Minnesota Area Redevelopment Act. Reappropriates all balances in the fund remaining on June 30, 1963.
- Chap. 764 Appropriates funds for the various major programs of the Departments SF 1718 of Public Welfare and Corrections. For detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 765 Appropriates funds for numerous listed state and semi-state activities, HF 1790 agencies, and programs. For detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 768 Appropriates funds for the payment of approved claims against the state. HF 1936 Establishes certain conditions for the payment of certain claims including waiving the state's immunity from suit.
- Chap. 790 Omnibus Natural Resources and Recreation Act. Provides for the acquisition of lands to be used as recreation areas and for the development of the natural resources of the state; authorizes the expenditure of some 7 million dollars during the calendar years 1964-65 and provides for an increase in the state cigarette tax to furnish the necessary funds for this project.

The Bill further calls for the addition of land to 17 existing state parks and for the purchase of lands for 14 new state parks. Makes available immediately from the General Fund the sum of \$400,000 to enable the purchase of wetlands and wildlife lands on which the state holds an option; further provides for the sum of \$500,000 to be made available from the General Fund to be used in distressed areas to provide work for needy and unemployed persons on conservation projects.

A 14 member legislative commission is created to advise and consult with the Commissioner of Conservation on the administration of the program.

- Chap. 804 Appropriates funds for the repair, maintenance and rehabilitation of certain public buildings and public properties. For detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 837 Appropriates certain money from the General Fund for education and related purposes. Establishes a State Junior College Board; permits the acquisition of lands under the power of eminent domain with certain allotted funds. For detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 838 Appropriates to the State Supreme Court certain moneys from the General Fund to be expended for legal fees and appeal expenses incurred by persons convicted of a felony in a district court, who are unable, due to proverty, to meet these expenses themselves, and who are without counsel and are acting in good faith and upon reasonable grounds. Prescribes the method by which such convicted persons may apply for the use of such funds and obtain the services of an attorney.
- Chap. 839
 HF 1959
 Authorizes the acquisition and betterment of public lands and buildings and public improvements generally; appropriates funds for the equipping and renovating of certain state buildings. Directs the State Auditor to issue and sell bonds of the state in the amount of \$33,990,000 to be credited to the 1963 State Building Fund. For detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 840 Appropriates certain funds to the Commissioner of Conservation for construction and improvement projects in state parks and to be called the State Park Development Account. Further provides for the distribution of the taxes realized from the sale of gasoline used for motor boat purposes and requires that permits be purchased by motorists before entry into state recreation areas. Further provides that the moneys allotted shall not cancel and sets July 1, 1963, as the effective date of the act.
- Chap. 873 Relates to the organization and administration of the state government

 HF 1791 and appropriates funds for the operation of various departments;

 further provides for the adjustment of the salaries of certain employees,

 and authorizes the acquisition of land in certain cases. Provides

 penalties for the misuse of funds within the various departments. For

 detail see tabulations which follow.
- Chap. 884 Appropriates funds to the Department of Highways for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1964 and June 30, 1965. For detail see tabulations which follow.

State Departments --

Chap. 132 Provides that the Commissioner of Veterans Affairs may act as guardian HF 697 for any minor or incompetent receiving money from the U.S. Government when requested to do so by an agency of the U.S. Government provided sufficient personnel are available to do so.

- Chap. 133 Provides that any receipts to be deposited each day with the State HF 711 Treasurer need not be submitted until such receipts aggregate \$50.00.
- Chap. 181 Appropriates \$150,000 to the Department of Taxation from the Income HF 1081 Tax School Fund for purposes of administering the withholding tax provisions of the Income Tax Law for the 1963 fiscal year.
- Chap. 201 Amends the law relating to the powers of the Commissioner of Taxation HF 563 in administering the Inheritance Tax Law.
- Chap. 388 Makes certain changes in the laws relating to the appointment and duties of officers of the Agricultural Society and appropriates certain funds to that Society from the Minnesota State Fair operating account.
- Chap. 389 Provides for the addition of one member to the Great Lakes Basin Compact HF 515 from either the Senate or the House of Representatives. (Thus raising total membership to five.)
- Chap. 398 Adds the cost of public liability or property damage insurance to the thr 1037 charges made by the Commissioner of Administration to the various state departments using central motor pool facilities.
- Chap. 414 Appropriates an additional \$8,800 to the Revisor of Statutes from the HF 1708 General Revenue Fund for legislative services for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963.
- Chap. 437 Relates to various powers and duties of the State Fire Marshall with SF 430 regard to flammable liquid, gases, blasting agents and explosives.
- Chap. 458 Establishes in the state treasury a Minnesota Highway Safety Account SF 629 and provides that the Minnesota Railroad and Warehouse Commission shall be responsible for the supervision, allocation, and disbursement of the account. Law also amends various sections of the law relating to safety devices and safety regulations and prescribes the regulations whereby the Railroad and Warehouse Commission shall distribute funds from the account.
- Chap. 463 Authorizes, according to prescribed regulations and conditions, the SF 1315 sale, destruction or other disposal of old buildings owned by the state which are located on property under the supervision of the Commissioner of Conservation.
- Chap. 492 Authorizes the Commissioner of Corrections to accept the uncompensated and voluntary services of certain persons and agencies that can assist the Department of Corrections in certain functions.
- Chap. 495 Amends the law relating to the Board of Trustees of the Minnesota SF 874 Soldiers Home by making certain changes concerning appointments to the board.

- Chap. 497 Amends certain sections of the Workmen's Compensation Act relating SF 1030 to occupational diseases by specifically including the State Game Warden Service and the State Crime Bureau within a special occupational grouping.
- Chap. 550 Makes various changes in the laws governing military forces in the SF 627 state. Changes certain sections of the existing law to conform to the Uniform Code of Military Justice and establishes various other procedures relating to military court martials and the compensation to be received while serving in a military court.
- Chap. 554 Provides that in certain cases and at his discretion, the Commission-HF 955 er of Highways may authorize payment of moving expenses of personal property belonging to a person whose lands have been acquired by the state through eminent domain proceedings.
- Chap. 565 Provides that when an administrative agency has refused to issue or SF 621 reissue a license or registration and the party who is applying appeals or institutes certiorari proceedings, the license or registration will not expire until 30 days after the determination of such appeal or certiorari proceedings.
- Chap. 567 Provides for the investment and management of constitutional trust SF 1079 funds by the State Board of Investment.
- Chap. 695
 Amends the law relating to the Minnesota State Archives Commission
 HF 1437
 by making certain changes relating to the organization of the
 commission and by providing a records management program to more
 efficiently maintain, preserve, and dispose of official public
 records. Also provides for the preservation of essential public
 records in case of nuclear or natural disasters.
- Chap. 758 Creates the office of Administrative Assistant to the Supreme Court

 HF 929 and prescribes the powers and duties of the office. Also provides

 for annual conferences of judges and for the reimbursement of

 necessary expenses incurred by judges while attending such conferences.
- Chap. 809 Provides for judicial review of the decisions and rulings of adminis-HF 876 trative state agencies according to the prescribed conditions and procedures.
- Chap. 822 Relates to the rules and regulations promulgated by state agencies

 HF 1720 directing their publication and distribution by the Commissioner of

 Administration. Establishes an administrative rules publication

 account in the state treasury.
- Chap. 887 Provides for the interim powers, duties, and jurisdiction of the standing committees of the Senate and House of Representatives and outlines the duties of certain state officers in connection with these committees.

Chap. 888 Prescribes the membership, powers, duties and jurisdiction of, and defines the duties of certain public officers and employees in connection with interim and other study commissions established by the legislature.

State Employees --

- Chap. 100 Establishes various restrictions in the subject matter of state publica-HF 224 tions. (Use of pictures and signatures of administrative officials is forbidden.)
- Chap. 160 Amends the law relating to the investment of State Employees Retirement SF 368 Funds to permit a wider range of investment of such funds.
- Chap. 427 Provides that any former member of the State Employees Retirement Associ-HF 1511 ation who is again entitled to salary or wages from the state may earn up to \$1,200 a year without losing his annuity or retirement for his period of employment.
- Chap. 436 Places certain employees of the Adjutant General's Office in the unclas-SF 360 sified service.
- Chap. 588 Amends the law relating to employment security by providing that employ-HF 1104 ment in state parks shall be classified as employment by the state.
- Chap. 709 Authorizes the Director of Civil Service and the Commissioner of Adminis-HF 234 tration to appoint a Director of the Wild Rice Harvestfrom the classified service of the state and to fix a rate of compensation for such director.
- Chap. 741 Provides for annuities to certain legislative employees through the State SF 983 Employees Retirement Association.
- Chap. 754 Amends the law relating to state civil service salary ranges by making the HF 480 changes pertaining to salaries for employment in a teaching program in certain state institutions. Also makes certain changes in the law relating to civil service examinations by providing that testing rooms and other accommodations shall be provided without charge.
- Chap. 766
 Amends the law relating to state departments and agencies by authorizing the State Board of Health to establish and operate preventive health services for state employees. Law transfers the present powers and duties in relation to health services from the Commissioners of Administration and Highways to the State Board of Health. Transfers present funds relating to health services from the Commissioners of Administration and Highways to the State Board of Health.
- Chap. 793 Provides the listed social security coverages for employees of certain public hospitals according to the prescribed conditions and regulations.

Miscellaneous --

- Chap. 5 Establishes a comprehensive field archaeological investigations code

 Which delegates the primary responsibility for field archaeological

 studies and investigation to the state. Replaces the less comprehensive earlier statutes.
- Chap. 10 Repeals the law requiring the state to pay one-half the cost of library books purchased by Minnesota school districts.
- Chap. 24 Authorizes the sale by the Commissioner of Administration of any buildSF 97 ings or personal property owned by the state and not needed for public purposes at public auction to the highest reasonable bidder. Further provides that any property may be withdrawn before completion of sale unless the auction has been announced to be without reserve.
- Chap. 32 Provides funds necessary to furnish facilities, supplies, and personnel HF'178 to a candidate for governor who has instituted an election contest.
- Chap. 177 Redefines the eleventh legislative district and the election of representatives from that district in accordance with the boundaries of the City of Mankato existing on January 1, 1963.
- Chap. 194 Authorizes the transfer of radio air navigation facilities owned by the SF 1190 state to the United States Government or to a political subdivision of the state. Transfer contingent upon certain specified conditions.
- Chap. 216 Amends the section of the law relating to procedures for the issuance SF 601 of patents for the sale of state trust fund lands.
- Chap. 342 Prescribes the boundaries of the forty-first legislative district. SF 1084
- Chap. 380 Amends various sections of the law relating to the inspection of voting machines. Makes certain changes relating to the methods used in inspecting the recording devices contained in the various types of machines.
- Chap. 387 Relates to expenses and compensation of certain officials and provides uniform mileage allowances of $7\frac{1}{2}$ cents and reimbursement of expenses for county commissioners under the Minnesota Election Law.
- Chap. 390 Appropriates moneys obtained from the sale of lands acquired from the HF 532 Federal Government (50% to the county in which the land is situated and 50% to the State General Fund.)
- Chap. 400 Allows the acceptance of certain bids with erasures and alterations which are submitted in relation to contracts and purchases to be made by the state if said erasures and alterations are treated in a certain manner by the bidding firms.

- Chap. 409 Provides that the chairman of the Minnesota Commission on Interstate SF 978 Cooperation which consists of five senators, five representatives and five members of the Governor's Committee on Interstate Cooperation, shall be elected by the members of the commission.
- Chap. 487 Amends the law relating to the surplus property revolving fund by SF 326 providing that advances of up to \$1,000 may be made for the performance of certain duties and the incurring of certain expenses relating to the disposition of surplus property.
- Chap. 615

 Amends the law relating to the Minnesota State Art Society by changing the official name to the Minnesota State Arts Council and by making certain other changes pertaining to reimbursement of members, organization and selection of the governing board and the general powers and privileges of the council.
- Chap. 638 Provides that the State Fire Marshall must keep an accurate account of HF 1317 expenses relating to the inspection of buildings to be condemned.
- Chap. 660 Provides for certain changes in the law relating to civil defense during SF 549 time of disaster.
- Chap. 665
 Authorizes the Adjutant General to contract or employ persons to repair and restore certain flags, standards, and guidons of military organizations of the state and the United States of America. Appropriates \$15,000 from the General Revenue Fund to the Adjutant General for this purpose.
- Chap. 677 Authorizes the issuance and sale of bonds of the State of Minnesota SF 1840 by the State Auditor in the principal amount not to exceed \$40,700,000, to refund certificates of indebtedness of the issues authorized by the legislature prior to January 1, 1963, and appropriates money in connection therewith.
- Chap. 680 Provides that every employee who is entitled to vote in any statewide election or an election to fill a vacancy in the office of Representative in Congress, may absent himself from work for the purpose of voting during the forenoon of such election day without loss of wages.
- Chap. 684 Relates to elections, makes certain additions to the laws regulating HF 1635 the counting of ballots.
- Chap. 791 Makes major changes to various sections of the law relating to aero-HF 1536 nautics and the uses of aeronautic funds. Provides for the issuance and sale of Minnesota aeronautics bonds and for the expenditures of funds accruing from the sale of such bonds.
- Chap. 801 Authorizes the use of Glen Lake Sanatorium as a civil defense facility SF 1484 according to the prescribed conditions.

- Chap. 813 Establishes regulations and procedures whereby all new public buildHF 1041 ings constructed after July 1, 1963, must have within their plans
 and specifications provisions for adequate accessibility and usability
 by handicapped and aged persons.
- Chap. 854 Makes certain changes in the law relating to compensation payments to SF 1850 National Guard personnel and their dependents.
- Chap. 861 Amends the corrupt practices law relating to elections by making spring spring numerous changes in various categories such as campaign practices and election procedures. Also makes certain changes in the law relating to penalties for false advertising.
- Chap. 868 Appropriates \$150,000 to pay for various costs and expenses relating HF 2002 to the 1962 gubernatorial election contest.
- Chap. 869 Appropriates \$150,000 to the Commissioner of the Department of Business Development to be used for the planning, construction and operation of a State of Minnesota exhibit at the 1964-65 New York Worlds Fair.

TAXATION

General --

- Chap. 66 Clarifies language used relating to excise taxes on gasoline and gasoline substitutes.
- Chap. 87 Provides for the assessment and collection of taxes and payment of HF 228 refunds by the Commissioner of Insurance to companies subject to insurance gross premiums.
- Chap. 88 Changes the date for payment of insurance gross premium tax from April 30 to March 1 and provides a penalty for failure to comply to this schedule.
- Chap. 97 Changes the due date for the payment of taxes on aircraft from February HF 719 15 to June 1 of each year.
- Chap. 112 Increases penalties for failure to register and pay the taxes on any HF 718 aircraft.
- Chap. 113 Provides that aircraft to which a nonresident has the right of possession and which is used for commercial operations must first be registered and a tax paid thereon, except when the aircraft is used for charter and the nonresident does not advertise, represent or hold himself out as offering to provide such service in this state.
- Chap. 119 Provides certain changes in the law relating to the taxation of motor SF 344 vehicles.
- Chap. 166 Amends the law relating to tax refunds to intercity bus operators and owners to provide that moneys needed for such refunds shall be appropriated annually from the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund.
- Chap. 188 Makes certain changes in the law relating to tax refunds for taxes SF 693 paid on aircraft.
- Chap. 232 Amends the law relating to the occupation tax on low grade iron ores to provide that semi-taconite shall be included in the low grade iron ore grouping.
- Chap. 249 Amends the law relating to the exceptions granted in the payment of the following deed taxes by more clearly defining the excepted parties and the conditions and circumstances necessary for exemption.
- Chap. 282 Amends the law relating to cigarette and liquor tax distributions to municipalities and other county political subdivisions by providing for a special census that may be taken in the year 1965 and every ten years thereafter for purposes of redistributing taxes in accordance with census findings.

- Chap. 426 Provides that iron ore which has been mined and either placed in stockHF 1199 pile or concentrated and placed in stockpile and which contains .180
 percent phosphorous or is classified as manganiferous ore shall be so
 percent phosphorous or is classified as manganiferous after being
 listed, and taxed as unmined ore for five taxable years after being
 mined. Thereafter such ore will be taxed as mined ore.
- Chap. 439 Permits common carriers with licenses to sell intoxicating liquors in SF 1142 more than one state to avoid payment of the Minnesota Excise Tax in certain cases.
- Chap. 462 Amends the law relating to cigarette taxes by providing that the SF 1008 Commissioner of Taxation may designate county treasurers to set cigarette tax meters on cigarette distributors according to prescribed settings and regulations.
- Chap. 524 Amends the law relating to the assessment of ore royalty taxes by the Gommissioner of Taxation by providing that reports concerning such assessments shall be filed in the appropriate state offices by June 30 of each year.
- Chap. 610 Provides for tax credits to be used against the occupation tax on iron SF 1592 ores. Tax credits are given for research and experimentations where the express purpose is to further the discovery, development or beneficiation of Minnesota iron ores or other Minnesota ores. Provisions of the act effective for any taxable year after December 31, 1962.
- Chap. 681 Increases the excise tax on gasolines from \$.05 to \$.06 per gallon. HF 271
- Chap. 686 Increases the excise tax rate on aviation gasolines to six cents per gallon. Also makes various changes relating to the rates on aviation fuel tax refunds.
- Chap. 687 Provides that tax credits may be given against the occupation tax on SF 558 certain iron ores in cases where the costs of mining operations exceed the value of mined ores.
- Chap. 701 Limits the total amount of taxes to be levied by and for any school SF 1083 district when such district has a population of not more than (1) 5,000 and not less than 2,500; (2) and less than 2,500.
- Chap. 712 Provides for certain instances when the cigarettes within a vending machine and the machine itself may be treated as contraband, and sealed, in lieu of seizure by the Commissioner of Taxation or his agents.
- Chap. 749 Relates to the limitation of actions for sales or use tax and provides SF 1856 that when a cause of action for sales or use taxes imposed by any other state has accrued at the time the tax first became due and payable, any action must be brought within two years.

- Chap. 832 Provides for the distribution of the tax moneys derived from the sale HF 1264 of yellow oleomargarine.
- Chap. 876 Provides that the Commissioner of Taxation will sell cigarette tax SF 1509 stamps to distributors at a discount of $3\frac{1}{4}\%$ on the first \$150,000 purchased during any fiscal year and at a discount of $2\frac{1}{2}\%$ for any additional amount purchased during the same year.
- Chap. 879 Creates a 14 member commission to study and investigate tax laws, HF 962 tax resources and revision of the tax laws of the state.
- Chap. 886 Extends certain surtaxes and additional taxes and provides for the HF 2008 disposition of the funds received.

Income Tax --

- Chap. 181 Appropriates \$150,000 to the Department of Taxation from the Income HF 1081 Tax School Fund for purposes of administering the withholding tax provisions of the income tax law for the 1963 fiscal year.
- Chap. 236 Amends the law relating to net income taxes by providing an additional depreciation deduction on property in addition to the presently existing federal depreciation deductions allowed.
- Chap. 331 Relates to income taxation based on net income and provides deductions HF 382 for the maintaining of certain students in the household of the tax-payer.
- Chap. 355 Makes major changes to various sections of the law relating to income taxes and redefines income categories according to the basic changes effected. Major provisions are established relative to authorized deductions and to allowed adjustments in tabulating taxes and refunds. Provides for reciprocal state action procedures that are to be followed in accomplishing certain provisions of the law.
- Chap. 587 Amends the law relating to income taxes by making certain changes relating to the classification of the various groups of taxpayers. Law provides for certain changes in taxation regulations pertaining to unincorporated business enterprizes declaring to be domestic corporations for taxation purposes. Provisions of the act are applicable to all taxable years beginning after December 31, 1961.
- Chap. 666 Relates to withholding tax and prescribes methods by which the Commis-SF 1322 sioner of Taxation may secure payment of the tax withheld by the employer but not submitted to the Department of Taxation.
- Chap. 835 Relates to taxes on and measured by net income; makes certain changes HF 1842 in the law governing the minimum tax on individuals, estates and trusts.

- Chap. 871 Amends sections of the income tax law relating to income tax credits SF 631 on the 1961 income tax by providing that such credits shall be given to certain taxpayers who filed 1961 returns and paid any required taxes no later than October 15, 1962.
- Chap. 880 Makes certain changes in the law relating to income tax deduction HF 1306 for campaign expenses incurred by candidates for public office.

Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes --

- Chap. 105 Provides for the exemption from inheritance tax, the value of an annuity or other payment receivable by any beneficiary other than the executor if received under a retirement annuity contract purchased by an employee organization referred to in Section 503(b) (1), (2) or (3) of the Internal Revenue Code and which is exempt under Section 501(a) of such code. This exemption is applicable in all cases when death occurs after July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 106
 Provides that if a federal estate tax return is filed and alternative valuation under Section 2032 of the Internal Revenue Code is elected for federal estate tax purposes, every inheritance devise, bequest, legacy, transfer or gift upon which Minnesota inheritance tax is imposed shall be valued as of applicable federal valuation date or dates. Applicable in all cases where death occurs on or after July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 107 Provides that in applying statutory inheritance tax rates to that

 HF 555 part of the first \$25,000 of property transferred which exceeds

 applicable exemption only those exemptions specified in M.S. Section

 291.05 (3) through (7) constitute applicable exemptions. (Exemptions listed in M.S. 291.05 (1) and (2) no longer included.)
- Chap 108 Permits transfer or delivery of intangibles of a nonresident decedent without the consent of the Commissioner of Taxation in certain cases. Applicable in all cases where death occurs on or after July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 109 Provides that copies of orders of the Commissioner of Taxation deny-HF 557 ing or allowing refund of inheritance taxes need no longer be forwarded by registered mail.
- Chap. 110 Provides for exemptions from inheritance taxation in certain instances. (Gifts for religious purposes, proceeds for payments from the United States Railroad Retirement Funds, or from the U.S. as a social security benefit.) Effective July 1, 1963.
- Chap. 111 Provides that where payment is made to be applied against inheritance

 HF 567 taxes due and the payment exceeds the amount required the Commissioner

 of Taxation shall make, upon proper application, a refund without

 interest.
- Chap. 182 Amends the law relating to the inheritance and transfer taxes on life SF 350 insurance policies.

- Chap. 218 Amends section of the law relating to inheritance and transfer of SF 906 property taxes to make changes in the factors and definitions constituting legal powers of appointment of the property owner.
- Chap. 356 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the authorized exemptions allowed when giving gifts to minors.
- Chap. 664 Relates to the filing of gift tax returns with the Commissioner of SF 901 Taxation.
- Chap. 740 Makes certain changes in the laws relating to inheritance, gift and SF 902 transfer taxes.

Property Taxes --

- Chap. 18 Changes amount of taxes due to \$10 in order to qualify for two installHF 112 ment payments of real property taxes and provides that when taxes
 delinquent after November 1 exceed \$40.00 they may be paid in 25%
 installments together with all penalties incurred up to the next tax
 judgment sale.
- Chap. 39 Provides that beginning with property taxes payable in 1964, taxes

 HF 53 on real property shall be designated by the year in which they become payable but the liens shall relate back to the assessment date preceeding except as otherwise provided.
- Chap. 81 Establishes the policy of the state with respect to the taxation of taconite and semi-taconite by providing that the combined occupation, royalty, and excise taxes shall not be increased so as to exceed the greater of (a) the amount which would be payable if such taxes were computed under the law in existence on July 1, 1963 or (b) the amount which is payable by manufacturing corporations transacting business within the state, as such laws may be amended in the future. Further provides for the disposition of such taxes, the treatment of operating losses, in so far as taxation is concerned, and the determination of gross income.

Also provides that the taxes on taconite, semi-taconite or its derivatives shall be considered to be a tax on real or personal property rather than an excise, occupation or royalty tax.

Chapter 99, H.F. 1150 would add an amendment to the State Constitution which prohibits the amendment, modification or repeal of the Laws of Minnesota, 1963, Chapter 81 for a period of 25 years. This amendment will become Article XXI of the Constitution of the State of Minnesota upon approval of the voters of the state in the 1964 general election.

Chap. 144 Amends the law relating to the authorized tax rates levied for the maintenance of free public libraries. Increases the tax levy rates for various categories of libraries and library services.

TAXATION (cont.)

- Chap. 418 Makes certain changes in the law relating to the taxation of HF 359 auxiliary forests by providing for the taxation of temporary buildings located on land within such a forest, altering the use of stumpage values in ascertaining the tax, and reclassifying certain lands for tax purposes.
- Chap. 457

 "Apartment Ownership Act." Establishes comprehensive rules, regulations, and procedures pertaining to the major aspects of apartment ownership.

 Defines aspects relating or pertinent to apartment ownership and operations, and clearly defines the obligations and responsibilities of apartment owners. Further provides for separate assessment and taxation for owners of individual apartments within a complex.
- Chap. 519 Amends the law relating to the apportionment of proceeds from the sale or rental of tax forfeited lands to provide that any county board may annually by resolution use up to 30% of the remaining receipts for timber development and other projects approved by the Commissioner of Conservation.
- Chap. 591 Amends the law relating to ad valorem real property taxes by providing certain changes relating to the reduction or abatement of assessed valuation or taxes. Law provides that in cases where a request for a reduction in full and true valuation does not exceed the amount of \$300, the county board may grant such reduction and abatement and authorize refunds according to prescribed procedures.
- Chap. 713 Relates to the apportionment of mortgage registry taxes collected by county treasurers. Provides that when the amount to be apportioned to any school district, city, village or town is less than \$1.00, such amount will be retained by the county treasurer.
- Chap. 714 Relates to the assessment of omitted property and the reassessment of improperly valued property; appropriates \$150,000 from the General Fund for a permanent reassessment revolving fund.
- Chap. 724 Empowers the Ramsey County Board to levy a one mill tax on all taxable property subject to the county library tax and to be used for the acquisition of library sites and the construction or renovation of library buildings.
- Chap. 735 Relates to certain iron bearing material other than taconite and semi-taconite and provides for the taxation of concentrates of this material in lieu of certain taxes. Further provides for the collection and distribution of such tax.
- Chap. 780
 Relates to the levy of an annual tax by the governing body of the SF 1851
 City of Minneapolis for all purposes of its Department of Public Relief; changes the maximum tax levy from 16 to 9 mills on all taxable real and personal property within the city.

TAXATION (cont.)

- Chap. 781 Provides for the elimination of real estate assessment books by the county auditor in certain instances; and provides for the inclusion in tax lists of true and full valuations of real estate; provides for a record of changes in valuations and naming official custodians of such records.
- Chap. 810 Amends the law relating to actions involving tax titles on certain HF 881 lands by establishing time limitations for the asserting of claims adverse to the state or to the state's successor in interest.
- Chap. 831 Provides that no deed, instrument, or writing on which a tax is owing HF 973 shall be recorded or registered by the register of deeds or the registrar of titles unless certain conditions are met.
- Chap. 841 Relates to the taxation of certain iron ore bearing material other HF 2009 than taconite which is treated in Minnesota.

VETOED BILLS

- SF 196 A bill relating to unemployment security.
- HF 408 A bill for an act relating to taxes on and measured by net income.
- HF 787 A bill for an act prohibiting certain commercial activities on both of any consecutive Saturday and Sunday and certain holidays; providing the punishment for violations.
- HF 1933 A bill for an act relating to taxation of certain iron bearing material.

POCKET VETOED BILLS

- A resolution memorializing the Congress of the United States to call a convention to propose an amendment to the Constitution of the United States, unless Congress shall sooner have submitted such an amendment, to provide for the election of the president and vice-president in a manner fair and just to the people of the United States.
- HF 1552 A bill for an act regulating the exercise of rights to appropriate, damage or acquire the surface of land in connection with the mining and removal of minerals therefrom and requiring payment of compensation to surface owners for such appropriation, damage, or acquisition and providing procedures for determination of such compensation.

INTERIM COMMISSIONS

Chap. 790 Minnesota Outdoor Recreational Resources Commission. HF 1291

Chap. 875 Mississippi River Parkway Commission. SF 284

Chap. 879 Interim Commission to investigate and study tax laws, tax resources, HF 962 and revision of tax laws.

Chap. 888 HF 1882

(1) Indian Affairs Commission

- (2) Commission on taxation and production of iron ore and other materials
- (3) Northeastern Minnesota Economic Problems Interim Commission

(4) World's Fair Interim Commission

(5) Interim Commission on Minnesota River Valley Development

(6) Highway Interim Commission

(7) Governmental Immunity Interim Commission

(8) Interim Commission on Employee Retirement Systems (9) Elections Interim Commission

(10) Interim Commission on the sale of home remedies.

TABLE I SUMMARY OF 1963 LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

Fund General Revenue - Direct General Revenue - Open Sub-Total	1963 \$2,796,202.49 2,796,202.49	1964 \$141,438,718.90 1,572,050.00 143,010,768.90	1965 \$145,766,941.00 1,647,050.00 147,413,991.00	Biennial Total \$287,205,659.90 3,219,100.00 290,424,759.90	Total Including Deficiencies \$290,001,862.39 3,219,100.00 293,220,962.39
Income Tax School - Direct Income Tax School - Open Sub-Total	328,656.87	163,553,152.00 37,042,040.00 200,595,192.00	171,943,275.00 37,542,040.00 209,485,315.00	335,496,427.00 74,584,080.00 410,080,507.00	335,825,083.87 74,584,080.00 410,409,163.87
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation State Airports Game and Fish Trunk Highway Highway User Tax Distribution Consolidated Conservation Areas Wildlife Acquisition Rural Credits Soldiers Relief Mobile Home Registration and Taxation	25,000.00 43,198.36 100,600.37 3,713.10 41,398.46	190,298.00 218,208.00 5,363,102.00 10,463,003.00 1,897,158.00 10,000.00 342,000.00 7,222.00 50,000.00	197,686.00 217,305.00 5,046,038.00 9,656,637.00 2,485,610.00 85,000.00 342,000.00 3,437.00 50,000.00	387,984.00 435,513.00 10,409,140.00 20,119,640.00 4,382,768.00 95,000.00 684,000.00 10,659.00 100,000.00	412,984.00 435,513.00 10,452,338.36 20,220,240.37 4,386,481.10 136,398.46 684,000.00 10,659.00 100,000.00 22.44
Lac Qui Parle - Big Stone Lake Project Natural Resources Building Outlay State Parks Improvement Employment Security Administration Sub-Total GRAND TOTAL	65,727.97 1,847,609.00 2,237.63 2,129,507.33 5,254,366.69	2,419,000.00 1,059,560.00 852,200.00 22,871,751.00 366,477,711.90	1,917,000.00 20,000,713.00 376,900,019.00	4,336,000.00 1,059,560.00 852,200.00 42,872,464.00 743,377,730.90	65,727.97 6,183,609.00 1,059,560.00 852,200.00 2,237.63 45,001,971.33

TABLE II

Estimated "Open" or "Standing" Appropriations
From General Revenue and Income Tax School Funds*

General Revenue Fund	1964	1965
Aid to Fire Departments Surcharge for Firemen's Relief General Revenue Refunds Cancelled Warrants Suspense Mpls., Cuyuna and Anoka Railroad Maybury Compensation Weber Compensation Retired Clerk of Court Compensation Administration a/c Highway Building Abandoned Bank Deposits District Court Judges Salaries Supreme Court Judges Salaries Sub-Total General Revenue	\$ 926,000 235,000 100,000 2,000 2,000 1,200 1,200 3,150 20,000 1,000 256,000 24,500	\$ 976,000 260,000 100,000 2,000 2,000 1,200 1,200 3,150 20,000 1,000 256,000 24,500
Income Tax School Fund \$10 Per Pupil Census Aid Income Tax Refunds Deficiency Interest Attributable Costs Utility Charges Sub-Total Income Tax Total Open Appropriations	8,400,000 28,200,000 400,000 34,000 8,040 37,042,040 \$38,614,090	8,500,000 29,000,000 34,000 8,040 37,542,040 \$39,189,090

^{*} An "open" or "standing" appropriation is one which sets apart an unspecified or a specified amount of funds to be available for continuous use without the need for reenactment by each succeeding legislature.

TABLE III 1963 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

		•			
<u>Chapter</u>	1963	1964	1965	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
General Revenue Fund					
62 National Defense Student Loans 68 Claims Commission Awards 85 Forest Pest Control 414 Revisor of Statutes Deficiency	\$ 32,191.00 41,468.94 34,350.00 8,800.00	\$	\$	\$	\$ 32,191.00 41,468.94 34,350.00
486 Promotion of Agricultural Markets 551 State Compensation Revolving Fund 593 Veterans Bonus	29,676.07	20,000.00 350,000.00		20,000.00	8,800.00 20,000.00 350,000.00 29,676.07
595 Medical Assistance for the Aged 623 Control Structure - Pomme de Terre Lake 665 Restoration of Battle Flags 689 Southwestern College 714 Reassessment Revolving Fund 720 Reimbursement Employment Security Fund		10,000.00 15,000.00 100,000.00 150,000.00 155.90	750,000.00	750,000.00 10,000.00 15,000.00 100,000.00 150,000.00 155.90	750,000.00 10,000.00 15,000.00 100,000.00 150,000.00
756 State Aid for Local T.B. Programs 762 Area Redevelopment Revolving Fund 764 Welfare - Corrections	421,445.83	30,000.00 750,000.00 64,811,314.00	30,000.00 65,576,637.00	60,000.00 750,000.00 130,387,951.00	60,000.00 750,000.00
765 Semi - State Activities 768 Miscellaneous Claims	50,000.00	1,119,804.00	1,119,956.00	2,239,760.00	130,809,396.83 2,289,760.00 172,216.91
769 Legislative Copies of "New Dimensions" 778 Korean Bonus 790 Natural Resources	1,242.50 900,000.00	2,121.00		2,121.00	2,121.00 1,242.50 900,000.00
808 Enforcement of Butterfat Overrun Laws 822 Printing and Sale of Rules and Regula- tions		30,000.00 26,000.00	30,000.00	60,000.00 26,000.00	60,000.00
830 Daytime Activity Centers - Mentally Retarded		155,000.00		155,000.00	155,000.00
832 Colored Oleo Tax Distribution 837 Education 838 Counsel Fees for Convicted Persons 859 Salary Adjustment - Correction Officers	93,365.24	450,000.00 46,877,012.00 35,000.00	375,000.00 52,252,669.00	825,000.00 99,129,681.00 35,000.00	825,000.00 99,223,046.24 35,000.00
and Attendant Guards 868 Gubernatorial Recount 869 Worlds Fair	150,000.00	128,000.00		128,000.00	128,000.00 150,000.00
873 State Departments 879 Tax Reform Study 883 Interim Commissions	756,446.00 25,000.00 80,000.00	26,229,312.00	25,632,679.00	51,861,991.00	150,000.00 52,618,437.00 25,000.00 80,000.00
Total	2,796,202.49	141,438,718.90	145,766,941.00	287,205,659.90	290,001,862.39
Income Tax School Fund 95 Youth Treatment Center 181 Administration of Withholding 764 Welfare - Corrections 765 Semi-State Activities 768 Miscellaneous Claims	92,986.00 150,000.00 22,972.57 14.38	6,724,725.00 50,000.00	7,218,005.00 50,000.00	13,942,730.00 100,000.00	92,986.00 150,000.00 13,965,702.57 100,000.00
837 Education 873 State Departments	61,649.71 1,034.21	153,519,920.00 3,258,507.00	161,520,697.00 3,154,573.00	315,040,617.00 6,413,080.00	14.38 315,102,266.71 6,414,114.21
Total	328,656.87	163,553,152.00	171,943,275.00	335,496,427.00	335,825,083.87
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation Account					
837 Education 888 Interim Commissions	25,000.00	190,298.00	197,686.00	387,984.00	387,984.00 25,000.00
Total	25,000.00	190,298.00	197,686.00	387,984.00	412,984.00
State Airports Fund					
873 State Departments		218,208.00	217,305.00	435,513.00	435,513.00

TABLE III (cont.) 1963 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS . BY FUND, BY YEAR

Chapter	1963	1964	1965	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
Game and Fish Fund 68 Claims Commission Awards 392 Control Structure - Current Lake 669 Department of Conservation Airplane 671 Replace Dam - Kansas Lake	\$ 750.00	\$ 15,000.00 15,000.00 5,000.00	\$	\$ 15,000.00 15,000.00 5,000.00	\$ 750.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 5,000.00
761 Land Acquisition - Itasca County 765 Semi-State Activities 768 Miscellaneous Claims	8,622.95	1,500.00 140,000.00	140,000.00	1,500.00 280,000.00	1,500.00 280,000.00 8,622.95
823 Control Structure - Pope County 873 State Departments Total	33,825.41 43,198.36	5,000.00 5,181,602.00 5,363,102.00	4,906,038.00 5,046,038.00	5,000.00 10,087,640.00 10,409,140.00	5,000.00
10001	-+5,190.30	7,303,102.00),040,030.00	10,409,140.00	10,452,338.36
Trunk Highway Fund 68 Claims Commission Awards 768 Miscellaneous Claims 800 Plastic Driver Licenses	44,700.56 29,771.44	147,000.00	61,750.00	208,750.00	44,700.56 29,771.44 208,750.00
873 State Departments 875 Mississippi Parkway Commission 884 Highway Department	1,128.37	5,000.00 10,311,003.00	5,000.00 9,589,887.00	10,000.00	1,128.37 10,000.00 19,900,890.00
888 Interim Commissions Total	25,000.00 100,600.37	10,463,003.00	9,656,637.00	20,119,640.00	25,000.00 20,220,240.37
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund 68 Claims Commission Awards 768 Miscellaneous Claims	2,055.50 1,657.60				2,055.50 1,657.60
873 State Departments Total	3,713.10	1,897,158.00 1,897,158.00	2,485,610.00 2,485,610.00	4,382,768.00	4,382,768.00 4,386,481.10
Consolidated Conservation Areas Fund					
768 Miscellaneous Claims 873 State Departments	41,398.46	10,000.00	85,000.00	95,000.00	41,398.46 95,000.00
Total	41,398.46	10,000.00	85,000.00	95,000.00	136,398.46
Wildlife Acquisition Fund 873 State Departments		342,000.00	342,000.00	684,000.00	684,000.00
Rural Credits Fund 873 State Departments		7,222.00	3,437.00	10,659.00	10,659.00
Soldiers Relief Fund 765 Semi-State Activities		50,000.00	50,000.00	100,000.00	100,000.00
Mobile Homes Registrations and Taxation					
68 Claims Commission Awards	22.44		1		22,44
State Lac Qui Parle and Big Stone Lake Water Control Project Fund 768 Miscellaneous Claims	65,727.97	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	14 1 14 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4		65,727.97
Natural Resources Fund					
790 Natural Resources 888 Interim Commissions Total	1,807,609.00	2,419,000.00	1,917,000.00	4,336,000.00	6,143,609.00 40,000.00
10041	1,847,609.00	2,419,000.00	1,917,000.00	4,336,000.00	6,183,609.00
<u>Building Outlay Account</u> 804 Repair of Public Buildings		1,059,560		1,059,560.00	1,059,560.00
State Parks Improvement Account 340 State Parks		852,200.00		852,200.00	852,200.00
Employment Security Administration Fund 873 State Departments	2,237.63			,	2,237.63
Grand Totals Direct Appropriations	\$5,254,366.69	\$327,863,621.90	\$337,710,929.00	\$665,574,550.90	\$670,828,917.59

TABLE IV

COMPARISON OF FIVE MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS
1963 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
DEFICIENCIES REPORTED SEPARATELY

Case		GOVER	nor's recommen	DATION		HOUSE BILLS			SENATE BILLS			LAWS OF 1963	
1964-65 1964-65 10,807,93	Education			Total.			Total			Total			Total
Biennial Total 104,604,011 324,955,772 429,130,476 593,336 533,365 533,3	1963-64	54,678,223	167,484,794	222,163,017	50,794,080	\$153,784,277 161,809,715	212,603,795				\$46,877,012 _52,252,669		
Cread Total 104,744,766 324,565,772 429,310,476 56,728,766 315,593,992 412,322,758 100,1667 315,0761 415,348,328 99,223,046 315,490,290 414,713,263 1961-65 10,865,866 10,865,866 10,865,866 9,175,167 9,101,174		120,665	324,565,772			315,593,992						315,428,601 61.649	414,558,282
1963-64 1964-65 1964-65 1964-65 1968-6	Grand Total	104,744,706	324,565,772	429,310,478	96,728,766	315,593,992	412,322,758	100,140,667	315,207,661	415,348,328		315,490,250	
Semi-State 1,173,083 100,000 1,273,083 1,179,745 240,000 1,419,745 947,447 100,000 1,046,619 1,119,956 240,000 1,359,956	1963-64 1964-65		9,873,967	9,873,967		9,001,174	9,001,174		9,589,701	9,589,701	-	9,589,887	9,589,887
1963-61	Semi-State		, ,,,,	, ,,,,			,,,,		2),00),00	2),00),00		19,900,090	19,900,090
Deficiencies Grand Total 2,329,500 200,000 2,529,500 2,323,108 480,000 2,803,108 1,944,066 230,000 2,174,066 2,289,760 480,000 2,769,760	1963-64 1964-65	1,156,417	100,000	1,256,417	1,143,363	240,000	1,383,363		100,000	1,046,619	1,119,956	240,000	1,359,956
State Departments 1963-64 26,609,727 10,655,004 37,264,731 25,126,967 10,378,207 35,505,174 26,296,210 11,192,883 37,489,093 26,229,312 10,914,697 37,144,000 1964-65 26,199,472 11,090,352 37,289,624 25,026,786 10,999,815 36,018,601 25,795,193 11,388,623 37,183,816 25,626,772 11,193,963 36,826,642 28,009,199 21,745,356 33,825 360,041 353,946 38,225 392,171 367,394 36,225 405,620 756,446 38,225 794,671 26,499,815 36,018,601 25,795,193 11,388,623 37,183,816 25,628,679 11,193,963 36,826,642 27,523,775 22,581,506 74,672,909 51,861,91 22,108,660 73,970,651 326,216 33,825 360,041 353,946 38,225 392,171 367,394 38,225 405,620 756,446 38,225 794,671 367,394 36,245 36	Deficiencies				2,323,100	460,000						480,000	
1963-64 26,609,727 10,655,004 37,264,731 25,126,967 10,378,207 35,505,174 26,296,210 11,192,883 37,489,093 26,229,312 10,914,697 37,144,009 1964-65 26,199,472 11,090,352 37,289,824 25,028,736 10,999,815 36,018,601 25,795,193 11,388,623 37,183,816 25,632,679 11,193,963 36,866,642 25,028,736 74,554,555 74,765,322 74,765	Grand Total	2,329,500	200,000	2,529,500	2,323,108	480,000	2,803,108	1,944,066	230,000	2,174,066	2,289,760	480,000	
Grand Total 53,135,415 21,779,181 74,914,596 50,509,699 21,406,247 71,915,946 52,458,797 22,619,731 75,078,529 52,618,437 22,146,885 74,765,322	1963-64 1964-65 Biennial Total	26,199,472 52,809,199	11,090,352 21,745,356 33,825	37,289,824 74,554,555	25,028,786 50,155,753	10,989,815 21,368,022	36,018,601 71,523,775	25,795,193 52,091,403	11,388,623 22,581,506	37,183,816 74,672,909	25,632,679 51,861,991	11,193,963 22,108,660	36,826,642 73,970,651
1963-64 64,802,175 7,002,094 71,804,269 64,386,326 6,666,147 71,052,473 64,436,758 6,805,893 71,242,651 64,811,314 6,724,725 71,536,039 66,477,794 7,718,903 74,196,697 66,029,062 7,255,850 73,284,912 65,557,906 7,301,928 72,859,834 65,576,637 7,218,005 72,794,642 131,279,969 14,720,997 146,000,966 373,150 421,445 22,972 444,418 442,445 22,972 444,418 442,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445 24,445	Grand Total	53,135,415	21,779,181	74,914,596	50,509,699	21,406,247	71,915,946	52,458,797	22,619,731	75,078,529			
1963-64 1963-64 1964-65 1964-6	1963-64 1964-65 Biennial Total Deficiencies	66,477,794 131,279,969 350,177	7,718,903 14,720,997 22,972	74,196,697 146,000,966 373,150	66,029,062 130,415,388 421,445	7,255,850 13,921,997 22,972	73,284,912 144,337,385 444,418	65,557,906 129,994,664 421,445	7,301,928 14,107,821 22,972	72,859,834 144,102,485 444,418	65,576,637 130,387,951 421,445	7,218,005 13,942,730 22,972	72,794,642 144,330,681 444,418
1964-65		•											
Deficiencies 197,099 56,797 853,857 868,757 61,198 929,955 932,205 152,847 1,085,053 1,321,257 122,847 1,444,104	1964-65 Biennial Total	148,511,906 291,042,709	196,268,016 381,912,678	344,779,922 672,955,387	142,995,291 279,529,650	189,296,554 369,250,572	332,291,845	144,519,466	190,163,197	334,682,663	144,581,941	189,960,238	334,542,179
						61,198		932,205	152,847				

NOTE: There are slight differences in totals due to dropping the "cents" column.

The Governor's Recommendations are based on the printed budget.

TABLE V

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1955 THROUGH 1963

Deficiencies Included

TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - FOUR MAJOR BILLS	Total	General	Income Tax	Game and	All Other
	* Bill	Revenue	School Fund	Fish Fund	Funds
1963 Session	\$637,023,478	\$284,940,640	\$335,582,083	\$10,401,465	\$6,099,290
1961 Session	566,938,926	252,777,314	299,511,721	8,775,982	5,873,907
1959 Session	476,853,522	208,824,655	253,573,633	8,188,966	6,266,266
1957 Session	405,366,555	196,411,830	190,966,953	8,219,475	9,768,294
1955 Session	325,492,923	163,490,459	147,468,326	7,743,669	6,790,469
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	70,084,552	32,163,326	36,070,362	1,625,483	225,383
	12.4%	12.7%	12.0%	18.5%	3.8%
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1959	160,169,956	76,115,985	82,008,450	2,212,499	(166,976)
% Increase 1963 over 1959	33.6%	36.4%	32.3%	27.0%	(2.7%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1957	231,656, <i>9</i> 23	88,528,810	144,615,130	2,181,990	(3,669,004)
% Increase 1963 over 1957	57.1%	45.1%	75.7%	26.5%	(37.6%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1955	311,530,555	121,450,181	188,113,757	2,657,796	(691,179)
% Increase 1963 over 1955	95.7%	7 ¹ 4·3%	127.6%	34.3%	(10.2%)
BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	90,085,404	43,952,659	45,938,088	587,016	(392,359)
	18.9%	21.0%	18.1%	7.2%	(6.3%)
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	71,486,967	12,412,825	62,606,680	(30,509)	(3,502,028)
% Increase 1959 over 1957	17.6%	6.3%	32.8%	(.4%)	(35.9%)
Dollar Increase 1957 over 1955	79,873,632	32,921,371	43,498,627	475,806	2,977,825
% Increase 1957 over 1955	24.5%	20.1%	29.5%	6.1%	43.9%

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

*Excludes direct appropriation to the Department of Highways in the 1961 and 1963 Sessions. In prior years no direct appropriations were made to this department.

75

TABLE VI

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1955 THROUGH 1963

Deficiencies Included

EDUCATION	Total	General	Income Tax	Game and	All Other
	Bill	Revenue	School Fund	Fish Fund	Funds
1963 Session	\$414,713,296	\$99,223,046	\$315,102,266		\$ 387,984
1961 Session	366,680,732	82,120,807	284,235,924		324,000
1959 Session	292,729,206	53,107,330	239,321,876		300,000
1957 Session	236,522,499	57,722,916	178,539,583		260,000
1955 Session	184,709,418	46,867,491	137,666,927		175,000
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	48,032,564 13.1%	17,102,239 20.8%	30,866,342 10.9%		63,984 19.7%
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1959	121,984,090	46,115,716	75,780,390		87,984
% Increase 1963 over 1959	41.7%	86.8%	31.7%		29.3%
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1957	178,190,797	41,500,130	136,562,683		127,984
% Increase 1963 over 1957	75.3%	71.9%	76.5%		49.2%
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1955	230,003,878	52,355,555	177,435,339		212,984
% Increase 1963 over 1955	124.5%	111.7%	128.9%		121.7%
BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	73,951,526 25.3%	29,013,477 54.6%	44,914,048 18.8%		24,000 8.0%
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	56,206,707	(4,615,586)	60,782,293		40,000
% Increase 1959 over 1957	23.8%	(8.0%)	34.0%		15.4%
Dollar Increase 1957 over 1955	51,813,081	10,855,425	40,872,656		85,000
% Increase 1957 over 1955	28.1%	23.2%	29.7%		48.6%

76

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

TABLE VII

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1955 THROUGH 1963

Deficiencies Included

SEMI-STATE	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1963 Session 1961 Session 1959 Session 1957 Session 1955 Session	\$2,769,760 2,260,968 2,493,630 2,491,497 2,183,127	\$2,289,760 1,770,968 1,993,630 1,880,478 1,704,178	\$100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000	\$280,000 280,000 280,000 372,700 316,000	\$100,000 110,000 120,000 138,318 62,949
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	508,792 22.5%	518,792 29.3%	=	-	(10,000) (9.1%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1959 % Increase 1963 over 1959	276,130 11.1%	296,130 14.9%	c	::	(20,000) (16.7%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1957 % Increase 1963 over 1957	278,263 11.2%	409,282 21.8%	සා ක	(92,700) (24.9%)	(38,318) (27.7%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1955 % Increase 1963 over 1955	586,633 26.9%	585,582 34.4%	en en	(36,000) (11.4%)	37,051 58.9%
BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	(232,662) (9.3%)	(222,662) (11.2%)	os . so		(10,000) (8.3%)
Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957 % Increase 1959 over 1957	2,133 .1%	113,152	c a	(92,700) (24.9%)	(18,318) (13.2%)
Dollar Increase 1957 over 1955 % Increase 1957 over 1955	308,370 14.1%	176,300 10.3%	ea ea	56,700 17.9%	75,369 119.7%

1957 enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

TABLE VIII

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1955 THROUGH 1963

Deficiencies Included

	STATE DEPARTMENTS	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
	1963 Session	\$74,765,322	\$52,618,437	\$6,414,114	\$10,121,465	\$5,611,306
	1961 Session	67,324,858	48,314,036	5,074,932	8,495,982	5,439,907
	1959 Session	63,204,863	44,922,406	4,877,225	7,908,966	5,496,266
	1957 Session	59,094,030	39,292,378	4,301,398	7,846,775	7,653,478
	1955 Session	46,757,542	31,015,559	3,117,754	7,427,669	5,196,560
	ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 # Increase 1963 over 1961	7,440,464 11.1%	4,304,401 8.9%	1,339,182 26.4%	1,625,483 19.1%	171,399 3.2%
	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1959	11,560,459	7,696,031	1,536,889	2,212,499	115,040
	% Increase 1963 over 1959	18.3%	17.1%	31.5%	28.0%	2.1%
8	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1957	15,671,292	13,326,059	2,112,716	2,274,690	(2,042,172)
	% Increase 1963 over 1957	26.5%	33.9%	49.1%	29.0%	(26.7%)
78	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1955	28,007,780	21,602,878	3,296,360	2,693,796	414,746
•	% Increase 1963 over 1955	59.9%	69.7%	105.7%	36.3%	8.0%
	BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	4,119,995 6.5%	3,391,630 7.5%	197,707 4.1%	587,016 7.4%	(56,359) (1.0%)
	Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957	4,110,833	5,630,028	575,827	62,191	(2,157,212)
	% Increase 1959 over 1957	7.0%	14.3%	13.4%	.8%	(28.2%)
	Dollar Increase 1957 over 1955	12,336,488	8,276,819	1,183,644	419,106	2,456,918
	% Increase 1957 over 1955	26.4%	26.7%	38.0%	5.6%	47.3%

1957 enacted appropriation adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

1955 through 1959 enacted appropriations adjusted for comparability by transfer of appropriations for Youth Conservation Commission, Board of Parole, Training School for Boys and Home School for Girls to Welfare - Corrections bills.

1963 enacted appropriation includes \$1,920,864 of game and fish funds that were handled by open appropriation in previous sessions and therefore not included in the appropriation bills from 1955 through 1961.

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - TABLE IX

Deficiencies Included

TABLE IX

LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1955 THROUGH 1963

	WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
	1963 Session 1961 Session 1959 Session 1957 Session 1955 Session	\$144,775,099 130,672,366 118,425,822 107,258,529 91,842,835	\$130,809,396 120,571,501 108,801,290 97,516,058 83,903,231	\$13,965,702 10,100,865 9,274,532 8,025,972 6,583,645		\$ _ 350,000 1,716,498 1,355,959
	ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	14,102,733 10.8%	10,237,895 8.5%	3,864,837 38·3%		G G
	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1959 % Increase 1963 over 1959	26,349,277 22.2%	22,008,106 20.2%	4,691,170 50.6%		(350,000)
8	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1957 % Increase 1963 over 1957	37,516,570 35.0%	33,293,338 34.1%	5,939,730 74.0%		(1,716,498)
79	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1955 % Increase 1963 over 1955	52,932,264 57.6%	46,906,165 55.9%	7,382,057 112.1%		(1,355,959)
	BIENNIAL INCREASES Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	12,246,544 10.3%	11,770,211 10.8%	826,333 8.9%		(350,000)
	Dollar Increase 1959 over 1957 % Increase 1959 over 1957	11,167,293 10.4%	11,285,232 11.6%	1,248,560 15.5%		(1,366,498) (79.6%)
	Dollar Increase 1957 over 1955 % Increase 1957 over 1955	15,415,694 16.8%	13,612,827 16.2%	1,442,327 21.9%		360,539 26.6%

1955 through 1959 enacted appropriations adjusted for comparability by transfer of appropriations for Youth Conservation Commission, Board of Parole, Training School for Boys and Home School for Girls from State Department bills.

¹⁹⁵⁷ enacted appropriations adjusted to include "open" appropriation for retirement (OASI - SERA).

TABLE X APPROPRIATIONS FOR EDUCATION (OTHER THAN UNIVERSITY AND STATE COLLEGES) 1940 THROUGH 1965 DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEAR

, Fiscal <u>Year</u>	Department of Education	Education Aids ^a	Scholarships, Aids to Libraries and Junior Colleges	Total
1940 1941 1942 1943 1944 1945 1946 1947 1948	\$ 100,000 100,101 ^b 108,500 103,542 ^b 162,010 152,010 208,220 222,291 ^b 382,504 369,321 ^b	\$ 8,073,500 8,373,500 8,422,500 8,607,500 9,198,000 9,185,000 11,540,000 24,164,600 25,890,850	\$	\$ 8,173,500 8,473,601 8,531,000 8,711,042 9,360,010 9,350,010 9,393,220 11,762,291 24,547,104 26,260,171
1950 1951 1952 1953 1954 1955 1956 1957 1958	763,894 ^d 744,258 893,049 891,966 948,589 950,153 1,175,505 1,287,342 ^b 1,501,936 1,542,463	39,378,300 40,290,100 51,680,600 63,897,300 62,899,600 65,484,000 66,551,306 76,903,765 91,714,387 95,094,955b	627,500 730,000	40,142,194 41,034,358 52,573,649 64,789,266 63,848,189 66,434,153 67,726,811 78,191,107 93,843,823 97,367,418
1960 1961 1962 1963 1964 1965	1,718,222 1,766,349 2,192,975 2,020,802 1,971,920 1,965,697	107,782,646 ^b 114,030,251 ^b 126,154,000 135,165,649 ^b 151,533,000 159,533,000	812,500 877,500 1,114,800 1,299,065 ^b 1,652,000 2,508,000	110,313,368 116,674,100 129,461,775 138,485,516 155,156,920 164,006,697

⁽a) Excludes: Aid to Common School Districts, Tuition and Transportation Aid-Schools of Agriculture, Census Aid and Endowment Apportionment.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriations, except employees' compensation.

(d) Includes Community School Lunch Appropriation from 1950 on.

⁽c) Beginning in 1948, appropriations for certain activities which had been classed as part of school aids were made a part of the departmental appropriation.

TABLE XI APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOR FISCAL YEARS 1933 THROUGH 1965 DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

Fiscal Year (Ending June 30th)	Maintenance and Improvements	Research & Extension ^a (including special hospitals)	Care of Indigent Patients in U. Hosp. (Shared: $\frac{1}{2}$ County, $\frac{1}{2}$ State)	Sub-Total of All Except Bldg. Appropriations	Building Projects	Grand Total
1933	\$ 3,275,000	\$ 111,000	\$ 330,000	\$ 3,716,000	\$ None	\$ 3,716,000
1934	2,800,000	77,500	330,000	3,207,500	10,000	3,217,500
1935	2,800,000	77,500	330,000	3,207,500	None	3,207,500
1936	3,100,000	90,500	370,000	3,560,500	173,000	3,733,500
1937	3,100,000	121,500 ^b	370,000	3,591,500		3,591,500
1938	3,500,000	218,500	370,000	4,088,500	775,000	4,863,500
1939	3,500,000	166,000	370,000	4,036,000	117,000	4,036,000
1940	3,540,000	165,000	400,000	4,105,000	429,500	4,534,500
1941	3,540,000	165,000	400,000	4,105,000		4,105,000
1942	3,727,910	350,000	400,000	4,477,910	346,000	4,823,910
1943	3,734,000	352,700 ^b	400,000	4,486,700	→	4,486,700
1944	3,890,000	425,575	490,000	4,805,575	1,175,000	5,980,575
1945	3,890,000	425,575	490,000	4,805,575		4,805,575
1946	3,825,000	540,000	620,000	4,985,000	1,156,600	6,141,600
1947	4,825,000	540,000	620,000	5,985,000		5,985,000
1948	8,087,248	714,000	908,000	9,709,248	7,683,000	17,392,248
1949	8,093,159 ^b	720,232 ^b	908,000	9,721,392		9,721,392
1950 ^c	12,252,019	989,439 ^d	1,506,546	14,748,004	14,214,000	28,962,004
1951	12,200,834	1,193,435 ^d	1,499,070	14,893,339		14,893,339
• 1952 [©] 1953	14,136,654	1,174,456 ^d	2,191,728	17,502,838	2,132,690	19,635,528
	14,236,654	1,293,192 ^b & d	2,249,079 ^b	17,778,925		17,778,925
1954	14,847,000	1,513,983 ^d	2,129,690	18,490,673	4,056,000	22,546,673
1955	14,929,000	2,007,416b & d	2,568,833 ^b	19,505,249	***	19,505,249
1956	15,878,500	2,152,666 ^d	2,200,000	20,231,166	6,600,000	26,831,166
1957	15,878,500	2,157,666 ^d	2,250,000	20,286,166	alti me	20,286,166
1958	14,542,031 ^e	2,672,276	2,836,236	20,050,543	16,530,518	36,581,061
1959	18,614,386 ^e	2,538,641	2,922,138	24,075,165	***	24,075,165
1960	19,179,470 ^f	3,259,138	3,071,714	25,510,322	14,457,150	39,967,472
1961 1962	20,817,239	3,341,007	3,349,244 ^b	27,507,490	wh day	27,507,490
1963	24,189,3718	3,777,931	3,896,896	31,864,198	7,836,747	39,700,945
1964	25,023,542 27,653,330	3,847,428	4,141,224	33,012,194		33,012,194
1965	30,800,157	4,197,011	4,505,578	36,355,919	12,483,700	48,839,619
1907	30,000,131	4,481,386	4,813,078	40,094,621		40,094,621

⁽a) Agricultural Extension Agents not under the University until fiscal 1942, and appropriations therefor for prior years are excluded.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriation.

(d) Does not include tuition and transportation aid for students at Schools of Agriculture.

(f) Includes \$100,000 for replacement of supplies and equipment destroyed by fire in the Chemistry Building.

(g) Appropriations for the University Branch at Morris are included in 1962 and thereafter.

⁽c) Duluth T. C. was made a branch of the University by the 1947 Legislature, and 1950 was the first year funds were appropriated directly to the University for the Duluth Branch.

⁽e) The University's share of the Occupation Tax on Iron Ore was used for Maintenance and Improvements beginning in 1958. The 1957 "Windfall" was added to fiscal year 1958 accounting for the difference in comparison with fiscal 1959.

TABLE XII

APPROPRIATIONS FOR MINNESOTA STATE COLLEGES 1940 THROUGH 1965

DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

(The 5 colleges include Bemidji, Mankato, Moorhead, St. Cloud and Winona)

		Five State Co	lleges	Training Program	State	National Defense	Contingent Fund, Campus Planning,	н-Санк-Сти-Отнибанн-Сти-Стин-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти-Сти
	Fiscal	Maintenance	Repairs &	Handicapped	College	Student Loan	Liaison Committee	
	Year	& Equipment	Betterments ^a	Children	Board	Program	& Special Projects	Grand Total
	1940	\$ 825,000	\$ 53,000	\$	\$ 1,800	\$	\$	\$ 879,800
	1941	825,000	52,000	·	1,800	·	·	878,800
	1942	854,850	39,175		2,000			896,025
	1943	928,850b	29,350		2,000			960,200
	1944	810,890	30,000		1,200			842,090
	1945	890,241	29,200		1,200			920,641
	1946	951,415	49,825		6,100			1,007,340
	1947	1,020,371	56,200		6,300			1,082,871
	1948	1,220,782	101,433		7,500			1,329,715
	1949	1,297,347 ^b	51,050		7,788 ^b			1,356,185
	1950	2,062,096	169,400		10,436			2,241,932
	1951	2,072,986	151,350		10,508			2,234,844
	1952	2,581,917	129,810		11,309			2,723,036
5	1953	2,669,009	89,800		11,123			2,769,932
)	1954	2,808,257	134,875		10,975			2,954,107
	1955	2,900,050b	75,060		11,047			2,986,157
	1956	2,938,975	148,874	,	C			3,087,849
	1957	3,047,980	71,800					3,119,780
	1958	4,260,873	77,500	46,400			100,000	4,484,773
	1959	4,912,629	77,500	47,000		22,835	~~	5,059,964
	1960	5,225,869	80,000	50,500		 	92,500	5,448,869
	1961	6,024,141	80,000	52,500		===	66 🖾 90	6,156,641
	1962	7,032,463	80,000	72,250		75,000	97,000	7,356,713
	1963	7,588,121	80,000	72,750		75,000	en en en	7,815,871
	1964	8,586,261	80,000	82,500		120,000	200,630	9,069,391
	1965	9,532,834	80,000	82,500		143,000	26,400	9,864,734

⁽a) Including special projects prior to 1958 but not major building appropriations. Beginning in 1958 the special projects are included in the Building Bill.

. &

⁽b) Including deficiency appropriations -- however, deficiency appropriations for employees' compensation for injuries have not been included.

⁽c) The expenses of the State College Board are included with the appropriation to the colleges. The 1955 Legislature made a single appropriation to the Board for the expenses of the Board and the five colleges. In previous years appropriations were made to the individual colleges.

TABLE XIII APPROPRIATIONS FOR STATE INSTITUTIONS 1940 THROUGH 1965 DEFICIENCIES AND EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

Year	Department of Public Welfare ^a	Department of Corrections	Mental Hospitals	Children's Treatment Center	Correctional Youth	Institutions Adult	Minn. Residential Treatment Center	Other Institutions ^b	Total
1940 1941 1942 1943 1944 1945 1946 1946 1951 1952 1953 1955 1956 1956 1961 1962 1963 1964 1965	\$ 501,430 527,226 128,904 157,666 308,200 322,235 419,226 409,261 262,051 274,634 1,067,268 1,103,977 1,117,252 1,140,123 889,657 865,221 1,289,596 1,297,466 1,436,950 1,425,315 1,733,103 1,786,182 2,087,820 2,175,683 2,510,680 2,624,635	\$ 1,098,642 1,114,817 1,264,214 1,269,769	\$ 2,353,950 2,281,000 2,362,821 2,689,542 3,149,221 3,130,275 3,590,821 4,070,727 5,140,112 5,626,179 8,780,815 9,749,175 12,581,368 12,734,186 12,909,517 12,949,879 12,880,833 13,057,796 15,006,674 15,678,566 17,073,903 17,283,445 18,466,627 18,601,473 19,325,960 18,995,600	\$ 90,000 90,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 50,000 109,679 110,087 90,000 90,500 83,850 77,400 49,530 47,831 55,541 50,694 79,000 79,054 172,598 238,800 264,679 272,508	\$ 352,175 333,675 345,750 339,600 425,901 432,844 492,209 536,862 695,603 712,242 863,661 862,301 784,703° 790,331 905,180 899,926 1,059,158 1,089,810 1,275,871 1,310,519 1,734,496 1,720,159 1,942,147 1,952,104 2,158,430 2,159,978	\$ 755,500 660,700 865,200 854,500 869,834 882,742 788,034 842,033 1,650,442 1,623,982 1,903,921 1,864,663 2,292,068 2,255,896 2,307,038 2,361,139 2,657,272 2,663,808 3,045,213 3,152,297 3,519,718 3,556,710 3,911,385 3,984,739 4,148,151 4,131,352	1,174,939 1,629,816	\$ 1,960,300 1,842,050 1,851,350 1,855,545 2,335,999 2,373,786 2,739,409 3,129,477 4,100,375 4,237,908 5,697,326 5,972,220 7,012,965 7,298,369 7,600,508 7,554,227 7,563,196 7,679,273 8,985,202 10,170,818 11,794,412 12,266,775 14,487,206 15,822,447 17,725,535 18,043,902	\$ 6,013,355 5,734,651 5,629,025 5,971,853 7,089,155 7,141,882 8,091,699 9,038,360 11,958,262 12,585,032 18,402,991 19,642,836 23,872,206 24,661,430 24,678,223 25,838,847 29,828,910 31,816,569 36,028,230 36,852,071 42,258,506 43,823,771 48,307,909 48,855,052

⁽a) Department of Welfare includes administration of the various aid programs as well as the institutions.
(b) Includes institutions for the mentally deficient, epileptic, blind, deaf, tubercular, and crippled children.
(c) The institutions for boys and girls were placed under Youth Conservation Commission in 1952.
(d) Commencing in 1960, all biennial appropriations are divided equally between years. Prior to 1950 only the contingent appropriation was divided.

TABLE XIV
APPROPRIATIONS FOR WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS ACTIVITIES 1940-65
DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

Fiscal Year	Old Age Assistance	Medical Assistance to the Aged	Aid to Dependent Children	Aid to Blind	Vocational Rehab. of Blind	Aid to County Sanatoria	Div. of Soc. Welfare Admin.	County Prob. Services Reimbursement	Children Under Guardianship	Public Relief	Equalization of Costs	Veterans' Relief	Aid to Disabled	Total
1940	\$ 5,300,000	\$	\$1,200,000	\$ 70,000	\$	\$400,000	\$220,000 ^a	\$	\$	\$5,500,000 ^c	\$	\$ 25,000	\$	\$12,715,000
1941	5,400,000 ^b		900,000	150,000b		425,000	220,000ª	***	m ee ee	3,250,000	*	25,000		10,370,000
1942	5,660,000		675,000	172,600		400,000	379,880			4,750,000°				12,037,480
1943	5,810,000		925,000	181,600b		400,000	436,380			4,250,000				12,002,980
1944	6,750,000		776,000	211,000		405,000	204,800		95,000	d		625,000		9,066,800
1945	7,000,000		900,000	230,000		420,000	259,800		95,000	1,500,000		625,000		11,029,800
946	6,855,000		869,500	234,500		270,000	145,000	***	95,000	660,000		450,000		9,579,000
1947	9,100,000		1,570,000	272,500		370,000	343,000		95,000	660,000		500,000		12,910,500
1948	8,655,724		1,459,000	347,945	13,685	325,000	364,616		150,000	720,000		500,000		12,535,970
1949	9,451,135		1,651,900	363,683	13,685	325,000	371,150	***	150,000	720,000		500,000		13,546,553
1950	9,515,430		2,503,703	396,108	37,115	521,000	387,225	*=	310,000	650,000	750,000	600,000		15,670,581
1951	10,311,975		2,866,886	433,941	37,115	521,000	395,015		320,000	650,000	750,000	600,000		16,885,932
1952	12,300,203		2,779,850	511,850	33,350	535,000	409,046		370,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		18,839,299
1953	13,104,913		3,005,285	829,000	34,650	547,000	414,631	***	370,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		20,205,479
1954	11,617,468		2,598,945	568,951	41,495	614,000	403,700		380,000	600,000	650,000	500,000	24,000	17,998,560
1955	12,207,113 ^b		2,727,448b	522,171	41,250	639,000	389,719		389,000	600,000	650,000	500,000	36,000	18,701,701
1956	13,043,685		2,968,026	381,524	57,500	575,000	e		387,500	500,000	700,000	450,000	306,748	19,369,983
1957	13,232,166	***	3,193,307	422,432	71,000	909,000			387,500	500,000	700,000	475,000 ^b	325,928	20,191,333
1958	13,024,587		3,606,714	406,261	60,000	823,500			400,000	500,000	975,000	450,000	291,733	20,537,795
1959	13,644,851		4,206,225 ^b	432,515	65,000	823,500		20 er au	410,000	510,000 ^b	1,150,000 ^b	600,000 ^b	361,883	22,203,974
1960	12,994,000		4,461,000	341,000	60,000	625,000		200,000	490,079	500,000	1,175,000	525,000	274,500	21,645,579
1961	13,963,000		4,826,000	349,500	60,000	600,000		205,000	649,241 [£]	500,000	1,300,000	500,000	275,000	23,227,741
1962	11,500,000		5,970,000	400,000	60,000	500,000		172,131	600,000	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	328,000	21,755,131
1963	12,800,000		6,650,000	475,000	60,000	500,000		185,131 ^b	732,433f	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	358,000	24,060,564
1964	11,990,000		7,390,000	438,000	60,000	100,000		198,000	719,880	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	311,000	23,431,880
1965	6,100,000	6,900,000	7,610,000	469,000	60,000	95,000		200,000	798,840	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	328,000	24,860,840

⁽a) To Board of Control and State Relief Agency which administered public assistance prior to creation of Division of Social Welfare.

⁽b) Includes deficiency appropriation.

⁽c) Balances of funds for work projects to be available for second year of biennium.

⁽d) Balance from previous biennium reappropriated.

⁽e) Included in table of Institution Appropriations.

⁽f) Includes \$130,541 deficiency appropriation in 1961 and \$82,433 in 1963 for Indian relief in Becker County.

TABLE XV

TOTAL APPROPRIATION BILLS
(DOES NOT INCLUDE DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS)

Year	Semi-State	State Departments	Education	Welfare and Corrections	Total
1942	\$ 747,445.00	\$ 8,602,238.07	\$ 13,818,935.00	\$13,284,765.00	\$ 36,453,383.07
1943	677,345.00	8,743,319.99	13,885,700.00	13,356,681.00	36,663,045.99
1944	686,316.00	9,878,118.50	15,166,451.00	15,530,954.22	41,261,839.72
1945	685,676.00	10,170,752.00	15,162,726.50	16,007,034.85	42,026,189.35
1946	666,342.05	11,237,846.71	15,584,892.00	16,760,698.02	
1947	730,083.33	13,405,562.71	19,033,840.00	19,801,763.27	44,249,778.78
1948	963,298.00	16,101,440.94	35,852,236.00	23,349,232.00	52,971,249.31
1949	926,142.52	16,355,336.94	37,584,106.00	24,194,618.00	76,266,206.94
	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	,0,0,0,000	3197049200.00	24,294,010.00	79,060,203.46
1950	992,904.00	17,725,366.00	57,198,130.00	34,073,572.00	300 080 070 00
1951	958,236.00	18,166,881.00	58,228,541.00	36,506,645.00	109,989,972.00
1952	1,097,235.00	21,563,306.00	72,904,523.00	41,876,802.00	113,860,303.00
1953	1,053,587.00	21,869,867.00	75,347,036.00	43,561,283.00	137,441,866.00
1954	1,151,597.00	23,142,728.00	85,364,969.00	41,809,951.46	141,831,773.00
1955	1,090,561.00	22,996,198.00	88,911,290.00	11 520 580 55	151,469,245.46
1956	1,077,638.00	24,956,182.00	91,273,326.00	41,532,589.55	154,530,638.55
1957	1,066,489.00	24,224,723.00	93,349,553.00	43,691,331.00	160,998,477.00
1958	1,165,944.00	30,759,451.00	109,973,289.00	44,219,201.00	162,859,966.00
1959	1,199,838.00	29,407,136.00	116,897,379.00	48,749,504.00	190,648,188.00
	,,	a), 101, 12, 100	110,091,319.00	51,154,068.00	198,658,421.00
1960	1,222,649.00	34,239,663.00	133,853,539.69	EE 1/11/ 272 00	001, 500 761, 60
1961	1,230,032.00	33,480,467.00	140,613,231.00	55,414,313.00	224,730,164.69
1962	1,128,577.00	34,316,054.00	168,782,686.00	57,110,844.00	232,434,574.00
1963	1,128,090.00	32,273,380.00	179,158,567.00	63,693,627.00	267,920,944.00
1964	1,359,804.00	37,144,009.00	200,587,230.00	66,634,931.00	279,194,968.00
1965	1,359,956.00	36,826,642.00	213,971,052.00	71,536,039.00	310,627,082.00
	,0,,,,,	30,000,000	00، ١٥٥ و ١١ و و دست	72,794,642.00	324,952,292.00

Institutions were in separate appropriation act through 1955. The Department of Corrections was added in 1961. The amounts have been combined for comparative purposes.

TABLE XVI STATE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE 1963 LEGISLATURE

Chapter Number		
1	Reauthorization of the 1961 State Building Bill	\$29,361,000
601	Maximum Effort School Aid Refunding existing certificates of indebtedness Additional funds for debt service and capital loans	3,900,000 16,000,000
677	Refunding certain existing certificates of indebtedness	40,700,000
791	Aeronautics Refunding existing aeronautics certificates of indebtedness Additional funds for airport purposes	4,526,900 2,073,100
839	1963 State Building Bill	33,990,000
	TOTAL	\$130,551,000

TABLE XVII
Summary Comparison
of
Senate, House and Conference Building Bills
1963-65

	Senate					House			Conference			
		Reappro-								Reappro-	irerence	
	General Revenue	priated Balances	Other Funds	New	M-4-1	Other	New		Other	priated	New	
	nevenue	Dataices	ruius	Borrowing	<u>Total</u>	Funds	Borrowing	Total	Funds	Balances	Borrowing	Total
Mental Institutions												
Anoka	\$ 42,000	\$370,325		\$ 824,675	\$1,237,000		\$ 315,000	\$ 315,000		\$410,325	\$ 824,675	\$1,235,000
Fergus Falls	150,000			615,000	765,000		215,000	215,000		100,000	100,000	200,000
Hastings	1,350			2,794,000	2,795,350		151,350	151,350		1,350	50,000	51,350
Moose Lake	30,500	5,000		65,000	100,500		38,000	38,000		35,500	45,000	80,500
Rochester	29,750			417,000	446,750		29,750	29,750		29,750	120,000	149,750
St. Peter	72,910			1,700,000	1,772,910		72,910	72,910		72,910	2,400,000	2,472,910
Willmar	18,500			98,000	116,500		44,500	44,500		18,500	50,000	68,500
Sub-Total	345,010	375,325		6,513,675	7,234,010		866,510	866,510		668,335	3,589,675	4,258,010
Mentally Deficient Institutions	5											
Brainerd	,			2,670,000	2,670,000						1,170,000	1,170,000
Cambridge	24,500			300,000	324,500		116,002	116,682			200,000	200,000
Faribault	69,500			1,702,000	1,771,500		1,290,000	1,290,000		69,500	1,600,000	1,669,500
Owatonna	42,000				42,000		26,500	26,500		26,500		26,500
$\stackrel{\circ}{\sim}_1$ Ramsey Co. Preventorium	2,500				2,500		2,500	2,500		2,500		2,500
Sub-Total	138,500			4,672,000	4,810,500		1,435,682	1,435,682		98,500	2,970,000	3,068,500
Special Schools and Hospitals										-		
Braille	7,000				7,000		7,000	7,000		7,000		7,000
Deaf	2,300			624,800	627,100		2,300	2,300		2,300	24,800	27,100
Gillette	31,800			60,000	91,800		20,000	20,000		30,000	•	30,000
Glen Lake	10,800			40,000	50,800					-		- /
Ah-Gwah-Ching	24,450			56,850	81,300		47,500	47,500		24,450	53,600	78,050
Sub-Total	76,350			781,650	858,000		76,800	76,800		63,750	78,400	142,150
Adult Corrections												
Reformatory for Men	32,500			1,509,366	1,541,866		75,500	75,500		28,500	154,000	182,500
Reformatory for Women	3,000			50,000	53,000		23,000	23,000		3,000	23,000	26,000
State Prison	106,500	193,410		460,500	760,410		249,910	249,910		80,000	363,410	443,410
Sub-Total	142,000	193,410		2,019,866	2,355,276		348,410	348,410		111,500	540,410	651,910
Youth Corrections												•
Home School for Girls	4,700			235,000	239,700		4,700	4,700		4,700		4,700
Training School for Boys	92,135			625,000	717,135		46,300	46,300		48,000	455,000	503,000
Willow River Camp	3,500				3,500		3,500	3,500		3,500	4)),000	3,500
Thistledew Camp				120,000	120,000		15,000	15,000		5,700	120,000	120,000
St. Croix Camp	10,000			85,000	95,000		3,000	3,000		10,000	11.0,000	10,000
Sub-Total	110,335			1,065,000	1,175,335		72,500	72,500		66,200	575,000	641,200
				, ,,	/ 17 /33/		1-3700	12,500		00,200	717,000	041,200

£-+

TABLE XVII (cont.) Summary Comparison

Senate, House and Conference Building Bills 1963-65

	****		Senate				House		Conference			
	General Revenue	Reappro- 'priated Balances	Other Funds	New Borrowing	Total	Other Funds	New Borrowing	Total	Other Funds	Reappro- priated Balances	New Borrowing	Total
State Colleges												
Bemidji	\$ 36,500	,		\$ 1,400,000	\$ 1,436,500		\$ 1,002,000	\$ 1,002,000		\$ 36,500	\$ 1,400,000	\$ 1,436,500
Mankato Moorhead	80,000			3,300,000	3,380,000		1,440,000	1,440,000		80,000	3,400,000	3,480,000
St. Cloud	96,000 60,000			1,848,000 1,640,000	1,944,000		1,265,000	1,265,000		96,000	1,918,000	2,014,000
Winona	51,000			125,000	1,700,000 176,000		1,230,000 905,000	1,230,000 905,000		60,000 48,000	1,740,000	1,800,000
Dormitory & Food Service Progr	ram			3,000,000	3,000,000		2,000,000	2,000,000		40,000	750,000 3,000,000	798,000 3,000,000
Sub-Total	323,500			11,313,000	11,636,500		7,842,000	7,842,000		320,500	12,208,000	12,528,500
University of Minnesota												
Minneapolis				6,909,500	6,909,500		5,546,500	5,546,500			6,079,500	6,079,500
St. Paul Duluth				2,336,500 1,444,000	2,336,500		2,405,000	2,405,000			3,470,500	3,470,500
Morris				717,800	1,444,000 717,800		1,144,000 708,000	1,144,000 708,000			1,444,000	1,444,000
Crookston				60,000	60,000		60,000	60,000			717,800	717,800
Waseca				400,000	400,000		400,000	400,000			60,000 400,000	60,000 400,000
Rosemount				14,000	14,000		29,000	29,000			14,000	14,000
Cloquet	5 , 000			10,000	15,000		-,	-2,		5,000	10,000	15,000
Itasca				8,900	8,900						8,900	8,900
Sub-Total	5,000			11,900,700	11,905,700		10,292,500	10,292,500		5,000	12,204,700	12,209,700
Adjutant General		\$ 40,000			40,000					59,100		59,100
State Parks Land Acquisition, Development and Improvement			\$2,880,109 ^a		2,880,109	\$3,941,209 ^b		3,941,209	\$4,240,809	:	X.	4,240,809
Land Acquisition												
State Colleges University				915,000 374,125	915,000 374,125		1,000,000 23 ¹ 4,000	1,000,000 234,000			1,000,000	1,000,000 274,000
Capitol Group	42,000			1,164,250	1,206,250		279,000	279,000		42,000	289,250	331,250
Soldiers Home	12,000			195,000	207,000		77,000	77,000		12,000	130,000	142,000
Administration				100,000	100,000		50,000	50,000			80,000	80,000
Bond Expenses				51,000	51,000		30,000	30,000			51,000	51,000
Contingencies							75,000	75,000				
TOTALS	\$1,194,695	\$608,735	\$2,880,109	\$41,065,266	\$45,748,805	\$3,941,209	\$22,679,402	\$22,620,611	\$4,240,809	\$1,446,885	\$33,990,435	\$39,678,129

⁽a) To be financed from the natural resources fund composed of a one-cent per package cigarette tax and from the state parks improvement account composed of 33 1/3% of the unrefunded tax on gas used by motorboats and the \$1.00 additional fee for park permits.

⁽b) To be financed from the natural resources fund composed of a one-cent per package cigarette tax and from the state parks acquisition account composed of 33 1/3% of the unrefunded tax on gas used by motorboats and the \$1.00 additional fee for park permits.

⁽c) To be financed from the natural resources fund composed of a one-cent per package eigarette tax and from the state parks development account composed of 33 1/3% of the unrefunded tax on gas used by motorboats and the \$1.00 additional fee for park permits.